NOTIFICATION TO ATTEND MEETING OF THE SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE
TO BE HELD AS AN ONLINE ZOOM MEETING
ON WEDNESDAY 19 MAY 2021 AT 3.00 PM

WEBCASTING NOTICE
This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s website. At the start of the meeting the Chair will confirm
if all or part of the meeting is being filmed.
You should be aware that the Council is subject to the Freedom of Information Act 2014, the Data Protection Act 1988 and 2018,
General Data Protection Regulations (EU) 2016/679 and the Defamation Act 2009. Data collected during this webcast will be retained
in accordance with the legislation.
Therefore, by entering the Council Chamber/Meeting Room and using the seats around the meeting tables, public gallery etc., you are
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting.
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Chief Executives Department on Extn. 2101 or DD (01) 222 2100.

AGENDA
WEDNESDAY 19 MAY 2021
PAGE
1

Minutes of Meeting held on 21st April 2021

5 - 38

2

Questions to the Director of Services South City

39 - 40

3

Environment and Transportation Matters
1. Minutes of the Traffic Advisory Group held on the 27/04/21 in relation
to Traffic Matters in the South Central Area.
2. Traffic Service Requests Status Reports at 15/04/21 and 26/04/21.

41 - 54

4

South Central Area Matters
1. Report for Proposed Demolition of Dolphin Park, Dolphin’s Barn,
Dublin 8, under Part 8 Planning and Development Regulations 2001.
2. Report for Proposed Demolition of former Health Centre and St.
Michael’s Community Centre, Emmet Road, Inchicore, Dublin 8, under
Part 8 Planning and Development Regulations 2001.
3. Director of Services Report.

55 - 58

5

Culture, Recreation & Economic Matters
1. Sports and Recreation Report for May 2021 South Central Area.

59 - 64

6

Planning & Property Development Matters
1. Proposed disposal of a substation site, wayleave and right of way at
Chamber Street, Dublin 8.

65 - 68

7

Emergency Motions.

8

May 2021 Motions.

DUBLIN CITY COUNCIL
SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE
19th May 2021
M98

Councillor Hazel de Nortúin (Motion deferred from April meeting).
Following on from the report: Rapid Assessment and Community
Response to suicide and suspected suicide in Dublin South commissioned after the rise in suicides in the Ballyfermot area, one of the
further research pieces was around the connection between suicide in
young women and domestic violence. Since then we've entered into a
pandemic and we've seen a clear increase in domestic violence as one of
the underlying conditions of the restriction of
movement. Ballyfermot/Cherry Orchard doesn't have its own dedicated
Domestic Violence worker and relies on the services in other areas.
I'm asking that Dublin City Council, with support of the members, write to
the Tusla DSGBV and support the call for a Domestic Violence Worker
dedicated to the Dublin 10 area - for reasons outlined.
Also that Dublin City Council provides a space within their properties in
Ballyfermot and Cherry Orchard to ensure ease of access to this much
needed service.

M108 Councillor Darragh Moriarty
That this Area Committee welcomes the long-awaited development of the
derelict site at the corner of Dolphins Barn/South Circular Road for public
housing and calls for Dublin City Council to explore and exhaust all
opportunities available to provide a public or community service at groundfloor level. The Cork Street, Dolphins Barn and Fatima areas are full of
apartment developments with vacant ground-floor commercial units. This
Area Committee is of the view that a community use at this prime groundfloor location could inject much-needed life into Dolphins Barn village.

M109 Councillor Darragh Moriarty
That this Area Committee calls on Dublin City Council to immediately
reverse plans not to include a 5-aside community sports amenity in the
Emmet Rd development (St. Michael’s Estate). This Area Committee
expresses its strong opposition to this measure which would see an
existing sports facility, which is used by local residents, stripped away from
this community and not replaced. Previous draft plans in 2018 and 2019
included a community sports facility and this Area Committee calls for that
commitment to be honoured.

M110 Councillor Máire Devine
That this Area Committee is shocked and dismayed by the recent murder
at Robinsons Court of one of our tenants. This complex is for our seniors,
many who are vulnerable and very distressed by this fatal incident. Is there
a safety audit available for this community and what safety measures, if
any, would make the complex more secure? Furthermore what protocols
are in place to support residents following calamitous occurrences? We
extend our deepest condolences to his family, friends and his community.
Mary Taylor
Director of Services South City
11th May 2021

MINUTES OF THE SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE MEETING
HELD ON WEDNESDAY 21ST APRIL 2021 (ONLINE ZOOM MEETING)

1. Presentation by the Dynamic Drimnagh Steering Committee.
Presentation given by Liam Fitzgerald and Lorraine Mitchell, Dynamic Drimnagh
Order: Presentation noted.
2. Minutes of Meeting held on 10th March 2021.
Order: Agreed.
3. Questions to the Director of Services South City.
Order: Replies to Questions and the Director of Services report circulated.
4. Environment and Transportation Matters
1. Minutes of the Traffic Advisory Group held on the 23/02/21 in relation to Traffic Matters
in the South Central Area.
2. Traffic Service Requests Status Reports at 15/03/21 and 30/03/21.
Order: 1. Report noted.
2. Report noted.
5.

6.

South Central Area Matters
1. Presentation on Camac Flood Alleviation Scheme.
2. Update report on the project at Liffey Vale.
3. Report on Sculpture Dublin.
4. Nomination of 1 Councillor to Board of F2 Social Enterprises.
5. Naming proposal for a new development at 75-78 Cork Street, Dublin 8.
6. Parks Works Programme for 2021.
7. Director of Services Report.
Order:
1. Presentation on Camac Floor Alleviation Scheme given by Mary Liz
Walshe. Presentation noted.
2. Report noted.
3. Report noted.
4. Cllr Darragh Moriarty was nominated to Board of F2 Social Enterprises.
5. Report noted.
6. Report noted.
7. Report noted.
Community, Culture, Economic and Emergency Services
1. Sports and Recreation report for April 2021 – South Central Area

Page 5

Order: 1.

Report noted.

7.

Planning & Property Development Matters
1. Proposed disposal of fee simple interest at 340 Ballyfermot Road, Dublin 10
to HAIL Housing Association.
2. Proposed disposal of fee simple interest at 14A to E Walkinstown Green, Dublin
12 to HAIL Housing Association.
3. Proposed grant of a lease of a site at 51A Old Kilmainham, Dublin 8.
Order:
1. Agreed. Recommend to Council.
2. Agreed. Recommend to Council.
3. Agreed. Recommend to Council.
8.

Emergency Motions

9.

April 2021 Motions
DUBLIN CITY COUNCIL
SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE
21st April 2021

M97

Councillor Michael Pidgeon
To ask the Director of Services to see that Dublin City Council will devise a traffic
calming plan for Islandbridge. The area is seeing huge footfall due to the nearby
parks, and the new residential build has made it more into a village in its own right.
The stretch of road is treated as an arterial route, with limited opportunities to cross
the road. Greater provision for pedestrians and cyclists is needed.
Order: Agreed

M98

Councillor Hazel de Nortúin
Following on from the report: Rapid Assessment and Community Response to
suicide and suspected suicide in Dublin South - commissioned after the rise in
suicides in the Ballyfermot area, one of the further research pieces was around the
connection between suicide in young women and domestic violence. Since then
we've entered into a pandemic and we've seen a clear increase in domestic violence
as one of the underlying conditions of the restriction of
movement. Ballyfermot/Cherry Orchard doesn't have its own dedicated Domestic
Violence worker and relies on the services in other areas. I'm asking that Dublin City
Council, with support of the members, write to the Tusla DSGBV and support the call
for a Domestic Violence Worker dedicated to the Dublin 10 area - for reasons
outlined. Also that Dublin City Council provides a space within their properties in
Ballyfermot and Cherry Orchard to ensure ease of access to this much needed
service.
Order: Deferred to May meeting.

M99

Councillor Vincent Jackson
That all the Councillors for the South Central Area are asking that the Parks Dept.
look at Grattan Crescent Park, Inchicore as a matter of urgency to look at
addressing the following issues, following on from a petition signed by 230 local
people. The Park has seen a major increase of anti-social behaviour with syringes
being found, rough sleeping in the park, ongoing alcohol consumption. The park
needs serious attention and it needs to be cleaned on a regular basis, signs need
replacing where necessary, play equipment needs to be checked regularly to ensure
it is safe, a bin is needed in the actual playground area to deter littering, out of
control cow parsley weeds and buddleia next to the River Camac is out of control
and needs to be cut back. Residents are looking for an online community

Page 6

consultation process to be done as a way of influencing future upgrades in the park
and ensure sustainability.
Order: Report to Councillors
M100 Councillor Tina MacVeigh
This Area Committee agrees to name the community garden in the newly developed
public park at Bridgefoot Street 'The Richie Taplin Community Garden’.
Order: Report to Councillors
M101 Councillor Máire Devine
That this Area Committee seek to ensure meaningful consultation with residents
when requesting a residential parking scheme vis a vis the layout marking plans.
That these plans be mutually agreed upon and tweaked when necessary. This is an
essential stage of public consultation yet for areas like Clarence Mangan Road this
has been repeatedly denied for several months. Courteous engagement with
knowledgeable residents is an essential prerequisite to plans for their area.
Order: Report to Councillors
M102 Councillors Daithi Doolan and Máire Devine
This Area Committee welcomes the announcement by Minister for Tourism of the
establishment of a €17m fund to assist local authorities with developing post Covid
outdoor activities and outdoor dining schemes. We ask the Director of Services that
this committee along with the support of Dublin City Council, make an application to
the fund, with the view to supporting the Emmet Road regeneration, in particular
Inchicore village, and the Cherry Orchard LAP.
Order: Report to Councillors
M103 Councillor Vincent Jackson
We are all very well aware of the recent substantial planning application for the
Davitt Road of Drimnagh, Dublin 12. However, this and many other recent planning
applications shows the need for a proper master plan for the Drimnagh area to
ensure that needs come before profit as all too often development comes into an
area without any due consideration of the community infrastructure. Drimnagh
Residents Association are anxious that such a masterplan inform all future land uses
and ensures proper integrated sustainability. Looking at the area, they are trying to
ensure that Davitt Road does not become a long narrow lifeless area. Hence it
needs proper public lighting, cycle lanes and the general area needs a traffic
management plan looking at one way systems all to offer this well-established
community an opportunity to grow and prosper.
Order: Report to Councillors
M104 Councillor Tina MacVeigh
Given the recent allocation of funds with the specific purpose of transforming
outdoor spaces within our cities and towns as welcoming, vibrant places; also given
the positive impact this will have on local economy; also given that the recent URDF
strategy document has advocated for these facilities as part of the regeneration of
the area this Area Committee agrees to:
- Trial the extension of the Inchicore Road Contra Flow Cycle Path from the junction
of Inchicore Road and Memorial Road to the junction of Tyrconnell and Davitt Road.
- To temporarily (May through September) close the left turning lane from Grattan
Crescent onto Emmet Road

Page 7

- To provide planters that will segregate an outdoor seating area outside the Black
Lion pub.
Order: Report to Councillors
M105 Councillor Vincent Jackson
That Dublin City Council become a vocal advocate for proper sustainable
transportation for the outer surburbs of Dublin such as Ballyfermot, Inchicore,
Walkinstown, Chapelizod and ensure that, where possible, future Luas lines come
towards the West of the City, that Kylemore Road has a proper Dart Type Train
Station when electrification of the line comes from Heuston to Hazelhatch. I regret
that transportation policy seems to be informed at political level as opposed to
community need. Hence if your area doesn’t have senior politicians at Government
level your area is forgotten about. I would ask that cycling infrastructure such as
Dublin Bikes, which I have sought for many years are brought to the City County
boundaries as a matter of urgency. Walkinstown, Drimnagh, Ballyfermot, Chapelizod
and Cherry Orchard are the forgotten cousins in relation to this infrastructure.
Order: Write to NTA and Irish Rail on the matter.
M106 Councillor Daithí Doolan
This Area Committee congratulates all those involved in the Drimnagh Task Force
and for the publication and launch of the report. It clearly focuses on the work that
needs to be done to engage with our young people and to protect them from antisocial behaviour and drug related crime
This committee furthermore commits itself to working with youth services and
agencies to ensure we have a coordinated response to tackling underage anti-social
behaviour in Drimnagh and surrounding areas.
Order: Write to the Minister for Children, Equality, Disability, Integration and
Youth and Minister of State for Public Health, Well Being and
National Drugs Strategy
M107 Councillor Daithí Doolan
This Area Committee calls on Irish Rail to review their expansion plans with the view
to including a DART station for the Ballyfermot area. This would be essential to the
provision of an upgraded public transport service for the whole community.
Order: Write to NTA and Irish Rail on the matter.

Councillor Vincent Jackson
Chairperson
21st April 2021

Attendance
Members:
Vincent Jackson, (Chairperson)
Tina MacVeigh
Darragh Moriarty

Members:
Michael Pidgeon, (Vice Chair)
Michael Watters
Sophie Nicoullaud

Apologies
Cllr. Hazel de Nortúin

Cllr Pat Dunne and Cllr Deirdre Conroy also attended.

Page 8

Members:
Maire Devine
Daithí Doolan
Daithí DeRóiste

Officers
Mary Taylor, Director of Services South City;
Bruce Phillips, Local Area Manager, South West Inner City;
David O Donovan, A/Local Area Manager, Ballyfermot / Drimnagh;
Miriam Flynn, Community & Social Development Officer, Ballyfermot Area Office
Cora Roche, A/Senior Staff Officer, South Central Area;
David Quearney, Acting Staff Officer, South Central Area;
Niall O’Neill, Area Engineer, Roads & Traffic;
Neil O’Donoghue, Executive ITS Officer ,Environment & Transportation;
Mary Liz Walshe, A/Senior Executive Engineer, Acting Senior Executive Engineer
Donncha O Dulaing, Senior Executive Officer, Culture, Recreation & Economic Services Dept
Brid Brosnan, Executive Parks Superintendent, Parks Department

Page 9

Director of Services Report
South Central Area Committee Meeting
21st April 2021
SOUTH WEST INNER CITY ELECTORAL AREA
SOUTH WEST INNER CITY AREA REPORT
Francis Street Environmental Improvement Scheme – the Area Office is awaiting
clarification from Roads Design & Construction on the proposed start date for this project.
Meath Street & Environs Public Realm Improvement Scheme – draft plans for Meath
Street will be on public display along the street from Thursday 15th April for two weeks. Two
online public information sessions are being held on Tuesday 20th April at 11am and 6pm.
This informal consultation will allow the design team to gain initial community feedback on
the emerging design for the street ahead of a planned Part 8 in summer.
Bridgefoot Street Park and Median: Covid restrictions have delayed work on the park, we
are awaiting notification of a restart date.
A smaller project to green the median along Bridgefoot Street is now rescheduled to October
to facilitate tree planting during the winter planting season.
James Street Median and Cromwell Quarters: a planting scheme and associated public
realm works to the median at James Street and the steps at Cromwell Quarters is hoped to
commence in July.
Local Area Greening and Street Tree planting: the Area Office and Parks Department are
exploring a number of smaller greening projects for Carman’s Hall, Blackpitts and Reuben
Street/ Haroldville Ave and St Anthony’s Road in Rialto. Surveying work will be undertaken
over the summer to inform potential locations and allow wider engagement on the plans.
Oisin Kelly Park/ Basin Lane: various works are proposed to improve public realm here
including repair and upgrading of the main boundary wall, relaying of footpaths in the area
and the introduction of street trees. It is hoped to being the boundary wall work in late May/
June depending.
Cork Street: HSE Estates is currently inviting ideas from the community for a 5 year rolling
programme of conservation and environmental works to its historic complex at Cork Street
(Bru Chaoimhin, Weir Home and Quaker Burial ground). The call out is until 30th April.
Newmarket: Temporary uses in the public realm are being examined, which may form part
of the City Recovery Plan.
Dolphins Barn : Funding for improvements in this area has been allocated and a
programme is being prepared.
Economic Development
MODOS for Dublin 8 – Circular Economy Training: The Area Office is partnering with The
Digital Hub to deliver this training programme for SMEs in Dublin 8 in June. A callout for
applications will issue shortly.

1
Page 11

Shop Front Improvement Scheme: the Area Office continues to invite applications for he
shopfront scheme in SWIC. Dublin City Council is also currently offering grants to Tourism
and Hospitality businesses across the city to facilitate outdoor dining. The scheme is funded
by Fáilte Ireland.
KILMAINHAM INCHICORE NETWORK
Turvey Park:
Community and Institution collaboration is paying off. Vast improvements can be seen down
in Turvey Park and it’s down to the hard work of keen local gardeners in conjunction with
DCC. It is of great credit to see how local residents working with DCC can lead to huge
improvements to an area. Well done to all involved.
Camac Flood Alleviation Scheme Public Consultation:
A Virtual Information Event will take place on April 28th at 7pm. The event is being hosted to
update interested stakeholders on the works that have been completed so far and to what
works will be carried out in the near future. To assist the project team on the night it has
been requested that any questions are forwarded in advance of the event and any interested
parties register at https://www.eventbrite.co.uk/e/river-camac-fas-tickets-149280910221. All
welcome to attend.
Bus Connects:
Bus connects completed its 3rd round of non-statutory public consultation in December 2020.
All submissions are being reviewed and considered for the finalization of the Preferred Route
Options Reports. It is expected that the statutory planning applications will be submitted to
An Bord Pleanála (ABP) during June or July for its consideration and determination.
A formal statutory public consultation process will then be undertaken by An Bord Pleanála
as part of their deliberations. During this process, the final Environmental Impact
Assessment Report for each Scheme, plus Preferred Route Option Reports and Traffic
Impact Assessments will be published and available for viewing. The public will again have
the opportunity to have their views heard and considered by An Bord Pleanála as part of the
process of their consideration of the proposals. For more information go to:
www.busconnects.ie
Call for new members for KIN:
KIN are interested in hearing from new groups/members who would like to join the monthly
meetings and share information about what is going on in the area.
Inchicore Regeneration Consultative Forum
Civic and Community Space Subcommittee:
A draft position paper is being prepared outlining the Community’s requirements in terms of
ensuring that our Community and Civic Spaces at Emmet Road will create a focus for
community life and growth in Inchicore and Kilmainham and better quality of life for all. A codesign process with Bucholz McEvoy Architects has led this subcommittee. A Progress
Report has already been sent to DCC and a Final Report will be sent once ratified by IRCF.
Meanwhile Activity and Community Building Subcommittee:
A new subcommittee is in the process of being set up to facilitate engagement between
Local People – Sharing, Working together, Inclusion, cohesion, building trust, community
ownership, pride in our neighbourhood.
Public Art Process Subcommittee:
This new subcommittee is in the process of being set up.
Education Subcommittee
The next meeting of this subcommittee is provisionally planned for Thursday 28th April.
2
Page 12

Residential Informal Focus Group
As part of an early INFORMAL process around the design of the residential homes at
Emmet Road, the Integrated Design Team are interested in having a conversation with
future possible residents. A small focus group of people is being collated to engage in this
conversation
Inchicore Sports Centre
Aaron Callaghan, Manager of Inchicore Sports Centre, is happy to meet with local groups
and discuss access and usage of Inchicore Sports Centre. This is being facilitated through
IRCF.
Kilmainham Mill
A construction team to carry out the enabling works for the mill is awaiting the easing of level
5 covid restrictions in order to work on the mill buildings.
Newcomen Bank Building:
Howley Hayes Architects has been appointed as the Architect led multi-disciplinary design
team to carry out the phase one preliminary design process. A minor stripping out / enabling
works package is being created.
A consultation process on the potential usage will commence shortly.
COMMUNITY
Iveagh Markets Folklore Project
As a follow up to the re-grouping of the ‘Have You Memories of Dublin’s Iveagh Markets’
evening, a virtual get together evening was organized by the SWIC Community
Development Team. For those who could not attend on the night and the many who did, a
series of follow up telephone interviews will be taking place over the next few weeks.
All the stories and memories will be collected/recorded as part of an Oral History/ Folklore
project commemorating Dublin’s Iveagh Markets.
Swift Apartments for the Liberties
Just as swallows mark the beginning of summer in the countryside, the sight and sound of
swifts in our cities is a true indication that summer has truly arrived. This year, migratory
swifts returning to the Liberties are in for a pleasant surprise, as 12 new swift nesting boxes
have been installed in the grounds of the beautiful convent of Warrenmount in Dublin 8.
Swifts are totally dependent on our built environment for breeding purposes as they nest in
nooks, crannies, and crevices in older buildings, they also nest under roof tiles. Sadly due to
the modernisation of our towns and cities swifts are running out of places to nest and their
populations are in serious decline.
Thanks to the enthusiasm of swift enthusiasts like Sister Pauline Galey from Warrenmount
Adult Education Centre, our Liberties swifts may be with us for some years to come.
Organised by DCC Community Development Section SWIC in conjunction with The Dublin
Swift Conservation Group. Special thanks to DCC Civic Maintenance Section for their
assistance.
Ceannt Fort - Environmental Improvements
Work has commenced at the entrance to Ceannt Fort Estate. The area has received a new
look with the removal of the existing overgrown shrubbery and some trees, and by replacing
with new trees and a new planting scheme. Also the area damaged at the entrance to the
play area has been repaired. The yellow box on the roadway was fully reinstated following
works.
3
Page 13

Annual Spring Planting Initiative
The Community Development Team plans to again supply various community groups with a
small amount bedding and perennial shrubs to encourage groups to undertake and maintain
environmental work in their local area. The team is in the process of contacting groups and
hopes to arrange the supply and delivery of same in the coming month. Groups will be
requested to sign up to strict safety protocols with regard to receiving plants and communal
planting will also be discouraged, in line with COVID 19 safety requirements.
Where the Wild Flowers Grow
This summer, Rialto’s bee population and other pollinating insects will have something to
feast on. Over the last two weeks 500 packs of native wildflower seeds have been given to
local households, gardening groups and children’s homework clubs. The seeds were packed
into individual envelopes by local volunteers and distributed throughout the area. Residents
also received a leaflet with information and tips on:







Creating a wildlife friendly garden
Encouraging wild birds, setting up nest boxes and bird feeding stations
Anti - litter and dog fouling information
How to protect and enhance local biodiversity
Information on the National Pollinator Plan 2021
The information reached over 4,600 people on Facebook. Feedback has been
enormously positive.

This pilot project was organised by Rialto Environment Group in association with the
Community Development Team.
Local History Talk - The Estate of Rialto Court
The Estate of Rialto Court, Street and Cottages is a distinct urban enclave which has
witnessed much since the early 1880’s when Sir Edward Cecil Guinness requested the
Dublin Artisans Dwelling Company (DADC) commence building homes for his brewery
workers at Rialto.
Once again Dublin City Council’s Historian in Residence Cathy Scuffil presented a wonderful
online talk on this historic part of Dublin on Thursday 15th April, 2021.
This event was hosted jointly by Dolphin’s Barn & Inchicore Libraries in association with the
local Area Office.
The Lord Mayor’s Award, Youth Awards

4
Page 14

The Lord Mayor’s Awards have honored individuals and groups who have made a special
contribution to both Dublin and its citizens. These Awards, usually held annually, are Dublin
City’s way of acknowledging and congratulating them for the extraordinary work they do.
In 2021, the Lord Mayor’s Awards will take place monthly and nominations for the awards
are open to members of the public for the first time.
Also, this year the Lord Mayor has announced the establishment of The Lord Mayor’s Youth
Awards 2021. These awards will celebrate outstanding young people between 5 and 18
years of age who have portrayed resilience and leadership during Covid-19.
Lord Mayor, Hazel Chu, will decide the winners and announce them at two
Youth Webinars on Thursday, April 29th 2021.
The first webinar, from 10am – 10:45am, will focus on the primary school children, while the
afternoon webinar, from 2pm – 3pm, will announce the secondary school winners.
Nominations for Lord Mayor’s Youth Awards will close on 21st April 2021.
The Community Development Team has contacted schools, youth agencies and groups
locally to notify them of this opportunity to acknowledge young people in the South West
Inner City.
To nominate a young person and register to attend the webinars please visit the nomination
portal on the Dublin City Council website, and/or click on the following link :
https://www.facebook.com/192086314153761/posts/4431127536916263
Public Domain
Four hundred meters of grafitti removed from the public domain at Thomas Street James
Street, High Street, Cornmarket, Inchicore Village, Kilmainham-Bow Lane, Rialto.
PMAC completed gum removal and an intensive wash of Inchicore Village from Emmet
Road to Grattan Crescent and Tyrconnell Road on April 9th.
Waste Management Public Domain Crew deep cleaned at Harcourt Lodge, Bulfin Estate and
Rialto. Clean-up equipment was delivered to High Road Kilmainham, Harman Street and
IEG.
A community lead clean-up took place on St. Albans /Raymond Street Lane. Public Domain
provided skips and clean-up equipment. Community and public domain are working with the
Mallin Avenue community on an environmental project. Meetings were held with Waterways
Ireland to identify boundaries and responsibilities in relation to infrastructure maintenance.
Additional Funding
Additional funding for public realm works and initiatives was allocated recently, a programme
of works is being prepared.
Report from: Bruce Phillips,
Senior Executive Officer
South West Inner City Local Electoral Area.

5
Page 15

BALLYFERMOT/DRIMNAGH ELECTORAL AREA
Park West/Cherry Orchard LAP
An application for funding for various projects, which was made to the Urban Regeneration
and Development fund in 2020 was not successful on this occasion. Other funding
opportunities will be pursued as they arise. As per the recent briefing to local Councillors,
work on the preparation of a part * application for site 1 is ongoing, and should be presented
to the Area Committee in September. Sites 4 and 5 are being advanced by the LDA.
Surveying of the park will commence shortly.
HOUSING PROJECTS
Chapelizod/Springvale Site
71 Units
The Springvale site has reopened for construction work from 12th April. The timeline for
completion of works is being reassessed because of the site closures.
3.8 Acre Site at Sarsfield Road
176 Units
The first meeting of the sub group of the SWG will take place on Friday 16 th April. This group
has been established to progress issues that arise between the full meetings of the SWG.
Items for discussion include update on funding application to DHLGH, progress on the
feasibility study on potential expansion of Sarsfield House for additional community facilities,
discussion about potential refurbishment of Fr. Bidone Court and progress on distributing an
Information Note to local residents living in areas close to vacant site at Sarsfield Road.
Cornamona Site
61 Units
The Cornamona site has reopened for construction work from 12th April. The timeline for
completion of works is being reassessed because of the site closures.
Crumlin Road/Rafters Lane Site
Part VIII approval given for the proposed demolition of the former Scoil Eanna and Funeral
Home on lands bounded by Crumlin Road, Rafter’s Road and Rafter’s Lane, Crumlin, Dublin
12. The redevelopment of the site will be the subject of a separate Part VIII Planning
application. The library development will be a separate development.
Bluebell
City Architects is awaiting a response regarding their Stage 1 submission to the DHLGH.
Lissadell Maisonettes
Refurbishment works are still ongoing on the vacant two-bed maisonettes and will be let
under Choice Based Lettings. One unit let in April with six vacant units remaining for
refurbishment.
Skate Park Le Fanu Park
No further works have taken place due to Covid 19 restrictions but An Garda Siochana
continue to monitor the area and there have been no further reports of anti-social behavior.
Kylemore Park
The upgrade of the Park has not been completed and some small works remain outstanding
due to travel restrictions which has impacted the contractor.

6
Page 16

Markievicz Park
Upgrade of picnic table and seating, installation of benches etc. still under discussion with
supplier.
Ballyfermot Civic Park
Awaiting contract signing which is due shortly at which time a clearer programme of works
will be devised over the coming months. Discussion ongoing regarding the proposed
alterations to the tribute garden to accommodate a larger entrance from the civic centre
plaza.
Ballyfermot Civic Centre
Discussions are ongoing with MABS regarding the relocation of their office space in the
building. This is to facilitate the relocation of the café from the first floor to the ground floor to
link with the upgrade of the civic park. It is likely that the HSE will be using the building for
non covid vaccinations for about 5 weeks in the near future.
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT REPORT
Environment
Each of the five neighborhoods have local Environmental Groups and the Council Staff
continue to support their work.
The Ballyfermot Environmental Group launched a monthly Community Clean Up on
Saturday April 10th. It was great see 5 groups of residents from Drumfinn, Le Fanu, Cherry
Orchard, Park west and the Clifden areas take part to clean their streets.
Strict social distancing was adhered to with residents wearing masks and keeping their
distance from each other.
The next Community Clean Up will take place on Saturday May 8th. Residents interested in
getting involved can email friendsofthesouthcentralarea@dublincity.ie
Momentum is building in Cherry Orchard for street clean ups with three streets already
signed up for the next clean up on May the 8th.
The Tidy Drimnagh Committee has organised street leaders who coordinate regular cleanups every month. On the 10th of April they concentrated on green areas and outside local
shops.
The Walkinstown Residents Association plan to re-establish their clean ups in the coming
weeks.
The Bluebell Environmental Group have a canal clean-up planned for Saturday the 17th of
April at 10:30 and will be joined by the Bluebell Community Angling Club and The Inchicore
Environmental Group. Socially distancing will be in place.
Chapelizod Tidy Towns have distributed equipment throughout the community to individuals
to carry out individual /street Clean ups.
The City Council is funding the Cherry Orchard Community Garden to provide 1000 trays of
bedding plants that will be distributed to local organisations during the month of May. This
initiative will replace the Plant Sales for 2021.
The City Council is funding WALK to provide 30 large Community Planters that will be
delivered throughout the area during the month of May.
7
Page 17

Anti-litter school campaign
The City Council is working with the primary and secondary schools in the
Drimnagh/Ballyfermot area to promote a Litter awareness campaign.
The renowned Environmentalist and radio presenter, Éanna Ní Lamhna will present a short
video, via zoom, on the importance of looking after our environment. The pupils will be asked
to design an anti-litter poster.
The winning posters will be displayed on the new and existing Community Planters that will
be installed around the area during May.
Social Inclusion
Friends of South Central Newsletter
The Community Development Team circulate a monthly online update to over 500
Community Groups and local residents.
The Newsletter “Friends of South Central Area” is growing from strength to strength and is a
great way to keep people up to date on local Council initiatives, Community events, funding
opportunities and items of local interest.
To receive the monthly update residents can email
friendsofthesouthcentralarea@dublincity.ie or sign up directly through the link:
http://eepurl.com/g5TWTb
Creative Ireland Mural
The City Council Community Development Section and Social Inclusion Unit are working
with Ring Street Youth Club to produce a community mural under the theme of diversity.
The mural was originally planned for Ballyfermot but securing a location within the time
frame proved too difficult. The Ring Street group will work with All City Street Artists
Collective.
This initiative is funded by Creative Ireland.
Lord Mayor Youth Awards 2021
Community staff are encouraging Youth Organisations to submit entrants to the Lord Mayor
Youth Awards that celebrates young people between 5 and 18 years of age who have
portrayed resilience and leadership during Covid 19.
Nominations close on April 21st and can be made on the attached link.
https://consultation.dublincity.ie/lord-mayor/lordmayorsyouthawards/
The Dublin Learning City
The Virtual Festival that ran from the 22nd to 24th March 2021 to celebrate and promote
learning for all, through fun and creative events was a great success with events organised
by the council getting a lot of hits on line and very positive feedback.
Community Participation
Bluebell Community Angling Club
The City Council is supporting the Bluebell Community Angling Club to repair and replace
their information Display stands along their match stretch of the canal that have been
vandalised.
Children’s Archival Project
8
Page 18

The Community Staff are supporting the City Council’s Historian in Residence to set up
Dublin city’s first Children’s Archive.
All the local primary schools in the Ballyfermot/Drimnagh ward will be encouraged to
participate, introducing them to the value of history and archives.
The children’s thoughts on the Covid 19 pandemic will be collected in pictures and poems
and be stored for future generations.
Cruinniú
Cruinniú Na nÓg will take place on Saturday 12th of June 2021.
The Ballyfermot Youth Organisations working together as “Unsung Youth“ received funding
to host, online events with a Grand Finale on June 8th, a Community Arts project and a vocal
coaching course.
Ring Street Youth Centre received funding to organise a weekend online workshop with
Robert Murphy, actor better known as, Buffy the Olympia Panto Queen.
Older People
The Community Call Helpline continues to be managed by Community Development Staff.
The Helpline Ph. 2228555 operates 5 days a week to respond to requests for local supports,
though the Helpline is not receiving many calls, it remains available to support vulnerable
people at this time.
Community Knitting Project
The knitting project, established by the City Council and promoted by the Bungalow, Walk
and Drimnagh knitters has been a great success. Older people have been provided with
knitting packs and collectively have knit over 25 blankets that have been distributed through
our sheltered housing schemes. The Council hope to set up knitting classes and clubs as a
social outlet when the restrictions are lifted.
Bealtaine
The Council will organise webcam talks during the month of May, through the Church
webcams to mark Bealtaine. Webcam Talks have taken place from three of the main
churches in the area and have been a very successful way to contact residents that are
restricting their movements.
The Council are working with the local Youth Organisations to organise planting of the
communal areas in some of the sheltered Housing complexes during May.
The Community Development staff contact details for Ballyfermot /Drimnagh area are:
Scott.watson@dublincity.ie
miriam.flynn@dublincity.ie
victoria.kearney@dublincity.ie

087 1643170
086 8151320
087 6009002

Orchard Centre Update.
It looks very likely that the Covid restrictions will need to be at Level 3 before the Centre will
have collective indoor bookings. With that in mind we are in the process of upgrading the
building with the installation of a new Sports Hall floor and new equipment in the original hall.
Furthermore, we will be working with the Ballyfermot Disability Collective and its Chair, on a
project that will be unveiled as part of International Disability Day in December 2021.

9
Page 19

Covid-19 Community Call
The Orchard Centre staff along with other Community staff, continue to monitor the helpline
for the area and, while calls are less frequent than 2020, there are still members of the
community who require assistance.
The SVP Foodbank
The foodbank continues to operate on a weekly basis with SVP splitting their clients on a bi
weekly basis to observe social distance guidelines.
Community Clean Up
On April 10th staff worked with residents of the area for a community clean up. This may
become a Monthly event moving forward. Social distancing guidelines were in place during
the clean-up.
Public Domain
100 meters of graffiti removed at Cherry Orchard Walkinstown and Bluebell.
Community Deep Clean at Croftwood Park Cherry Orchard Drive, Crescent and Park,
Tyrconnell Road. Community Clean-Up equipment –family packs delivered to Croftwood
Park Clean up Group, Tidy Drimnagh and Friends of South Central Area
Ballyfermot/Drimnagh LEA, Bluebell Environmental Group.
Public Domain Crews facilitated collection of Blue bags at a number of pre-arranged
locations across the local area over the past month. Enquiries to email:
southcentralpublicdomain@dublincity.ie

Report from: Kay Noonan,
Acting Senior Executive Officer
Ballyfermot/Drimnagh Local Electoral Area.

10
Page 20

Q1

DUBLIN CITY COUNCIL
SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE
21st April 2021
Councillor Tina MacVeigh
To ask the Director of Services whether there are any additional public convenience
amenities planned to be provided throughout the city including at recreational areas
in the near future.
Reply
Options are currently being assessed for the provision of temporary toilets during the
summer months when retail and hospitality remains closed. The provision of
permanent public toilets is a longer term proposal which will require significant
funding and take time.
Contact: Richard Whelan, Administrative Officer, Waste Management Services.
Tel: 222 4521
Email: richard.whelan@dublincity.ie

Q2

Councillor Michael Watters
To ask the Director of Services if it would be possible to install double yellow lines on
the road that leads to Irwin Court, Kilmainham, Dublin 8. This street is constantly
filled with parked cars and residents suspect that the cover the cars provide leads to
increased anti-social behaviour, such as drug use.
Reply
The Area Engineer will carry out an assessment of Irwin Court and establish whether
the installation of Double Yellow Lines will improve the road conditions in the area.
The matter of anti-social behaviour would be a matter for An Garda Síochána.
Residents would be encouraged to report any anti-social behaviour to their local
Garda station
Contact: Niall O’Neill, South Central Area Engineer, Traffic Advisory Group
Tel: 222 6393
Email: niall.oneill@dublincity.ie

Q3

Councillor Darragh Moriarty
To ask the Director of Services the status of a derelict dwelling on Mallin Avenue in
Dublin 8 (details supplied). Is this site on the derelict sites register, what action has
been taken by DCC to bring it back into use and can a statement be made on the
matter?
Reply
The Derelict Sites Unit does not have an active file on this site. The Unit will arrange
for an inspection of the site and will take action as appropriate following the
assessment of its condition. A full report on the findings of the inspection will issue to
the Councillor.
Contact: Nial Dully, Administrative Officer, Derelict Sites Section
Tel:
222 3941

Email: nial.dully@dublincity.ie
Q4

Councillor Darragh Moriarty
To ask the Director of Services if an assessment of the Ceannt Fort estate, off St.
James’s Street in Dublin 8, can be carried out by Dublin City Council to determine

Page 21

whether this estate can obtain Architectural Conservation Area (ACA) status. The
local residents’ association is keen to mark the 100th anniversary of the estate in
1923 and the forthcoming City Development Plan offers an excellent opportunity to
recognise the estate’s unique architectural character and cultural heritage. Can an
assessment be carried out and a timeline for a response be provided?
Reply
As the councillors are aware, in accordance with the Planning and Development Act
2000 (as amended), Dublin City Council is conducting a review of the existing Dublin
City Development Plan 2016 – 2022 and preparing a new Dublin City Development
Plan 2022 -2028.
The recent Public Consultation phase has now has now drawn to a close. A review of
all written submissions will be considered with regards to future ACA work to be
undertaken over the lifetime of the new City Development Plan. Submissions made
will be considered as part of the review of the ACA programme outlined in the current
Development Plan including the area of Ceannt Fort.
While the Development Plan review is taking place, it is not intended that any new
ACAs will be prepared, as resources within the Conservation Section are diverted to
working on the Draft Development Plan, as well as the other duties which must be
undertaken within the Conservation Section.
Contact: Paraic Fallon, Senior Planner, Archaeology, Conservation & Heritage Section
Tel: 222 3474
Email: paraic.fallon@dublincity.ie
Q5

Councillor Darragh Moriarty
To ask the Director of Services to confirm whether a 5-aside football pitch will form
part of the final plans for the Emmet Road (St. Michael’s Estate) regeneration.
Reply
The provision of a 5-aside pitch is not feasible on the Emmet Road site.
Consideration has been given to providing a pitch on the site but due to various
design constraints this site is not a suitable location.
Dublin City Council are committed to providing a pitch for the community. A number
of locations have been identified that may be suitable to locate a pitch. Dublin City
Council are currently examining the feasibility of the various options.
Contact: Sandra McAleer, Senior Exec Engineer, Housing Supply Unit
Tel: 222 5153
Email: Sandra.mcaleer@dublincity.ie

Q6

Councillor Darragh Moriarty
To ask the Director of Services if an audit can be carried out of DCC playing
pitches/kickabout areas across the South West Inner City determining:
a) how frequently they are used;
b) by what groups they are used;
c) whether these spaces are suitable for organised team football; and
d) the extent, if any, of anti-social behaviour associated with these playing pitches.
A number of DCC-owned playing pitches/kickabout areas have, in my view, been
mismanaged and allowed fall into poor condition, including: the pitch at Michael

Page 22

Mallin House (Vicar St), Oisin Kelly Park (Basin Lane) and the pitch adjoining the
Inchicore Community Sports Centre. The partnering of DCC and Oliver Bond Celtic is
an example of where community engagement and ownership can enhance the use of
a public playing pitch.
Reply
As per Government Covid-19 Restrictions there are no organised sports or training
sessions allowed on any of Dublin City Council pitches.
Michael Mallin Pitch is an urban sports to accommodate both football and basketball.
The pitch is currently in good condition, and was recently shortlisted as a possible
venue for an urban basketball competition to be organised by Basketball Ireland in
the future should Government restrictions allow. It is currently used on a daily basis
by local residents and no anti-social behaviour has being reported in recent times. In
the future, to facilitate nearby construction work, the pitch will be temporarily reduced
in size but upon completion restored to its original size and the facilities upgraded.
The Michael Mallin House Residents Group have a positive working relationship with
Dublin City Council.
Oisin Kelly Park Playing Pitch in Basin Street is rarely used and has suffered from
anti-social behaviour mainly broken glass and fires. There is a lack of community
leadership and involvement in Basin Street.
Contact: Mark McInerney, Project Estate Officer
Tel:
2222479
Email: mark.mcinerney@dublincity.ie
Q7

Councillor Darragh Moriarty
To ask the Director of Services what percentage of the reported €8m National
Children’s Hospital development contributions will be allocated towards development
of the Linear Park, which has yet to receive any confirmation of funding.
Reply
Development contributions collected are not allocated to specific projects associated
with the area in which the development is situated. The €7.3M development
contributions paid on this development will be used to part fund the citywide capital
works program agreed by the City Council.
Contact: Avril Feeney, Administrative Officer, Planning & Development
Tel: 222 5233
Email: avril.feeney@dublincity.ie
The proposals for the linear park as presented to the Area Committee are to be
implemented in phases with the first phase ready to commence as soon as
construction restrictions due to covid 19 are lifted. Funding for this work will come
from DCCs capital programme.
Contact: Leslie Moore, Head of Parks Biodiversity & Landscapes Service
Tel: 222 5049
Email: parks@dublincity.ie

Page 23

Q8

Councillor Darragh Moriarty
To ask the Director of Services if wraparound pedestrian crossings can be added to
the junction of Parnell Rd/Clogher Rd (Sally’s Bridge – photo attached). This junction,
like the rest of the Grand Canal, has become a very popular destination for walkers
and joggers throughout COVID-19 and the lack of pedestrianisation makes this
particular section of the canal dangerous.

Reply
The Sustainable Mobility & Projects Section in conjunction with the NTA are working
on the design of the South Grand Canal Cycleway & Footway. As part of the project,
the Parnell Rd/Clogher Road junction will be upgraded to provide wrap around
pedestrian crossings. The design is advanced and we intend to commence
construction in Q4.
Contact:
Tel:
Email:
Q9

Perry Chitombo, Senior Executive Engineer.
01 222 6635
perry.chitombo@dublincity.ie

Councillor Máire Devine
To ask the Director of Services for an update on the completion of the powder coated
railings at Myra Close? A low base wall was erected several weeks ago that now
attracts drinking youths.
Reply
The railings for Myra Close are under construction at this time. Dublin City Council
anticipate that they will be ready for installation within the next two weeks
Contact: Michelle Robinson, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance.
Tel:
222 3517
Email: michelle.robinson@dublincity.ie

Q10

Councillor Máire Devine
To ask the Director of Services to have the gates at St. Catherine’s park open earlier
then 10am to allow recreational use for local residents?
Reply
St Catherine’s Park has been closed to facilitate landscape improvement works, but
due to the current level 5 restrictions due completion of these works have been
delayed. It is hoped that with the easing of restrictions the works can recommence
and the park be reopened.
Contact: Brid Brosnan, Executive Parks Superintendent
Tel:
222 3144
Email: Brid.Brosnan@dublincity.ie

Page 24

Q11

Councillor Máire Devine
To ask the Director of Services to arrange for an inspection and report on hazardous
parking at the junction of SCR/Old Kilmainham at 4 star pizza.
Reply
Parking Policy and Enforcement will ask an inspector to inspect the parking at this
junction and review the situation to determine what may need to be done to address
any parking issues.
Contact: Hugh Fahey, Administrative Officer, Parking Policy and Enforcement.
Tel: 222 3847
Email: hugh.fahey@dublincity.ie

Q12

Councillor Máire Devine
To ask the Director of Services when flat pack collapsible containers for the
accommodation of residential waste bags at Pimlico is to be trailed?
Reply
With regard to potential trial of collapsible containers for residential waste bags, the
Award of Contract notice has not yet been issued on e-tenders. We are currently in
discussions with the preferred bidder regarding a project plan and trial stage.
Contact: Richard Whelan, Administrative Officer, Waste Management Services
Tel: 2224237
Email: richard.whelan@dublincity.ie

Q13

Councillor Máire Devine
To ask the Director of Services that we welcome the successful regeneration of
St.Teresa’s Gardens and to install street trees at Margaret Kennedy Road that will
contribute to the liberties greening strategy?





22 Trees have been planted along Margaret Kennedy Road
Front gardens of all properties planted with shrubbery
Tree’s & shrubbery planted in the courtyard of Margaret Kennedy Court
It is also the intention for the proposed park to have trees along the railed
boundary with Margaret Kennedy Road.

Contact: Veronica Hand, Project Estate Officer, South Central Area
Tel: 222 5190
Email: veronica.hand@dublincity.ie
The Housing and Community Services Department as part of the regeneration of St
Teresa’s Gardens have installed trees along Margaret Kennedy Road. The Local
Area Office will continue to liaise with the Parks Department and other stakeholders
in regards to Margaret Kennedy Road’s contribution to the Liberties greening
strategy.
Contact: Darach O’Connor, Executive Manager, Housing & Community Services
Tel: 086 8150528
Email: Darach.oconnor@dublincity.ie

Page 25

Q14

Councillor Máire Devine
To ask the Director of Services to provide members with a summary of the report
commissioned by DCC and completed by Conservation Architects in early 2000’s
that included 92/93 Francis Street which, following recent planning refusal, is now
mostly demolished.
The RPS database of the Conservation Section has been checked without identifying
a report from the early 2000’s relating to 92/93 Francis Street. Other built heritage
files and databases are now being checked, including those in City Architects.
A conservation report on 93 Francis Street was prepared by John Coughlan
Associates in 2008 for the deletion of the building from the Record of Protected
Structures under the Draft Dublin City Development Plan 2011-2017. The structure
was deleted from the RPS in accordance with the statutory process for the
preparation of that Development Plan.
Contact: Paraic Fallon, Senior Planner, Archaeology, Conservation & Heritage Section
Tel:
222 3474
Email: paraic.fallon@dublincity.ie

Q15

Councillor Máire Devine
To ask the Director of Services what are the plans for the reopening of community
centres in SWIC?
Reply
Dublin City Council is subject to public health guidelines in relation to the provision of
all services including community centres. This is under constant review to enable
Dublin City Council to prepare and deliver service provision as public health
guidelines allow.
Contact: Paul O Halloran, Administrative Officer.
Phone: 01 222 6879
Email: paul.ohalloran@dublincity.ie

Q16

Councillor Máire Devine
To ask the Director of Services what foreseeable opportunities exist that would
shorten and alleviate the decade plus timescale for the regeneration at Oliver Bond
House? Furthermore, have the interim improvement works been decided upon and is
the funding secured?
Reply
Dublin City Council (DCC) applies for social housing capital funding from the
Department of Housing, Local Government and Heritage (DHLGH) in accordance
with its four-stage capital approval process.
The Housing and Community Services Department (DCC) is presently in the process
of preparing a Stage 1 submission with regards to securing initial project approval for
the redevelopment of Oliver Bond. The Housing and Community Services
Department will explore all opportunities to expedite the regeneration process of
Oliver Bond House.
In the interim a programme of work is being progressed on Oliver Bond Complex.
Interim improvements include work on Tree Pits to provide colour and greening for
the area, construction of new Bin Stores and provision of recycling bins, the addition
of a playground subject to site suitability, road improvement in the complex, painting
Page 26

of the exterior railings and exterior of the complex, new parking arrangements and
the cleaning of gutters and subject to agreement with the Oliver Bond Football Club,
Oliver Bond Residents Group and Dublin City Council, improvements to the Oliver
Bond Football Pitch will be further progressed. Funding for these works has been
secured.
Contact: Darach O’Connor, Executive Manager, Housing & Community Services.
Tel: 086 8150528
Email: Darach.oconnor@dublincity.ie
Q17

Councillor Máire Devine
To ask the Director of Services for an update on negotiations with the owner of the
railed pocket park at Rialto Cottages in order that it can be productively enjoyed by
residents who will provide much needed TLC to transform this space?
Reply
The owner of the site has not responded to correspondence issued to her from the
City Valuers Office. We will write to her again and also to her last known solicitors,
with a view to commencing negotiations. In tandem with these actions, we will
prepare a valuation of the plot.
Contact: David Garvey, Chief Valuer, Planning & Property Development
Tel: 2222112
Email: david.garvey@dublincity.ie

Q18

Councillor Daithí Doolan
To ask the Director of Services to organise for Dublin City Council to remove the tree
at (details supplied).
Reply
Dublin City Council has visited this site and inspected the tree. While it is not the
responsibility of the City Council to remove trees from tenants properties, in this case
Dublin City Council will oblige by removing the tree and are in the process of
engaging a contractor to carry out the works on our behalf.
Contact: Michelle Robinson, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance
Email: michelle.robinson@dublincity.ie
Tel:
2223517

Q19

Councillor Daithí Doolan
To ask the Director of Services to investigate the serious dampness at (details
supplied) which has been an issue for 5 years. The tenant was promised heating for
her hallway by DCC but this was not followed through. Can you organise for DCC to
install this heater and confirm a date for insulation of the house?
Reply
Dublin City Council has received a request for a new radiator for the hall in the last
two weeks, the depot will liaise with the tenant to make arrangements to have the
works carried out.
Funding for the continuation of the Retrofitting programme has recently been
announced and there is a brief mobilisation period prior to works commencing. The
programme however will be developed and further information will be available in due
course.

Page 27

Contact:
Email:
Tel:
Q20

Michelle Robinson, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance
michelle.robinson@dublincity.ie
2223517

Councillor Daithí Doolan
To ask for an update on the DCC cycle strategy for D10 & D12 and what is the
timeframe for engaging with residents and stakeholders to develop this strategy?
Reply
Dublin City Council will be engaging with Area Committees and local communities
throughout 2021 to develop a Walking & Cycling Action Plan. The purpose of the
plan is as follows:
The purpose of the plan is as follows:


To increase the number and diversity of people walking and cycling in Dublin
City;



To inform the new City Development Plan;



To align with new City Centre Transport Study.

It is intended that the Action Plan will set out succinct actions to identify, prioritise,
design and implement safe, accessible and attractive walking and cycling
infrastructure networks and strategies and initiatives to support and encourage modal
shift.
This Action Plan will be developed by using a collaborative community-based
approach to engage, inform, listen, and co-create solutions.
The Covid Mobility Request Form, which was established in May last year provides
some rich data as to what walking and cycling measures are being sought in all
areas. We are currently working with UCD to create a heat map of these requests.
This heat map plus maps of existing cycle facilities (currently being collated by the
NTA) and maps of planned cycle facilities (see NTA website for full list of locations in
DCC; https://www.nationaltransport.ie/wp-content/uploads/2021/02/2021-IssuedAllocations-Final.pdf), will provide the starting point for engagement with Area
Committees. It is expected that all 3 maps will be available in June.
Contact: Antonia Martin, Communication & Promotion Officer, Covid Mobility
Measures.
Tel:
222 6273
Email: covidmobility@dublincity.ie
Over the next five years, Dublin City Council will undertake the planning and
implementation of 140km of cycling and walking infrastructure. This includes 55km
spread across 27 existing projects and 85km spread across 31 new projects. In the
Dublin 10 and Dublin 12 areas, the following projects are proposed:
 Grand Canal Greenway (Blackhorse Bridge to Portobello) (existing project).
 Naas Road to Inchicore (JFK Industrial Estate to Emmet Road via Tyrconnell
Road) (new project).
 Harold’s Cross to Ballymount (Clogher Road to Kimmage Road West via
Sundrive Road and Stannaway Road) (new project).
As project teams are set up over the next six months, these three projects will be
assessed, in conjunction with the city’s overall project portfolio, in order to develop a

Page 28

programme for delivery. Initial requests have been made to the HR Department so
that sanction can be obtained to begin recruitment. However, as no project teams
have yet been assigned to any of these projects, it is not possible to give a timeframe
for stakeholder consultation at this time.
Further cycling and walking infrastructure is proposed in the Dublin 10 and Dublin 12
areas by the BusConnects programme along the following core bus corridors:
 Lucan to City Centre (Chapelizod Bypass).
 Liffey Valley to City Centre (Ballyfermot Road & Sarsfield Road).
 Clondalkin to Drimnagh (Long Mile Road).
 Greenhills to City Centre (Walkinstown Road, Drimnagh Road, Bunting Road
& St. Mary’s Road).
Contact:
Tel:
Email:
Q21

Padraig O'Brien, A/Senior Executive Engineer.
2224225
padraig.obrien@dublincity.ie

Councillor Daithí Doolan
To ask the Director of Services what plans have DCC to include residents, voluntary
services and community groups in the structures for delivering the Cherry Orchard
LAP?
Reply
As a key landowner and local authority of the Park West – Cherry Orchard LAP area,
Dublin City Council is committed to engaging with the community and wider
stakeholders in the delivery of the local area plan objectives. Different projects will
bring together different sectoral interests and residents depending on the nature of
the project. Later this year DCC’s Park Department proposes to commence a
consultation process regarding Objectives CS1 and CS2 to redesign and enhance
the sporting provision of Cherry Orchard Park. This particular process will involve a
wide community input, including City Council members, local residents, sporting
groups, parish, school and Department of Education and Skills. Also this year it is
proposed to bring a Part 8 process forward for the development of Site 1. As each of
these projects commences members of the South Central Area Committee will be
consulted and opportunities for consultation will be agreed. The implementation of
the LAP is a 6-10 year project and throughout this process there will be various and
different opportunities for the local community to engage in this process.
Contact: Fiona Cooper, Senior Executive Planner
Tel:
222 3628
Email: fiona.cooper@dublincity.ie

Q22

Councillor Daithí Doolan
To ask the Director of Services to ensure that Spiddal Park is cleaned up on a
regular basis?
Reply
Parks are satisfied that the maintenance of the above mentioned park is carried out
to a satisfactory standard. The councillor will be aware that Parks have ceased
spraying weeds and there has been a resulting increase in weed growth generally.
Traditionally herbicide would be used to control weeds growing between paving setts,
as is the case in Spiddal Park. Parks will arrange to power wash the paved area as a
more permanent solution to the weeds at this location.

Page 29

Contact:
Tel:
Email:
Q23

Brid Brosnan, Executive Parks Superintendent
2223144
brid.brosnan@dublincity.ie

Councillor Michael Pidgeon
To ask the Director of Services if there is any update on plans or improvements to
key junctions relating to the proposed Linear Park in Rialto - specifically at Rialto
Bridge and Suir Road? If the junctions fall under the remit of the Traffic Department,
has the department been approached to improve the crossings for pedestrians and
cyclists at these points?
Reply
The Sustainable Mobility & Projects Section in conjunction with the NTA are working
on the Suir Road pedestrian crossing as part of the South Grand Canal Cycleway &
Footway. The design is advanced and we intend to commence construction in Q4.
Contact:
Tel:
Email:

Q24

Perry Chitombo, Senior Executive Engineer.
01 2226635
perry.chitombo@dublincity.ie

Councillor Vincent Jackson
To ask the Director of Services to please indicate what way an old disused lane-way
at (details supplied1) should be legally divided. There is confusion that part of the
lane which is to the front, was built upon by the previous owner of the house however
the adjoining neighbour in (details supplied2) feels the lane-way should have being
offered for purchase to both houses. In addition, if the lane is still in the ownership of
DCC, who is responsible for the cleaning of weeds, trees etc which are now growing
in the old back section of the lane-way.
Reply
If the owners of houses abutting a disused laneway wish to incorporate it into their
properties the Council would be usually prepared to dispose of it evenly to each party
or otherwise in accordance with any agreement reached between the parties. Any
such disposal would be subject to checking for the existence of drains and water
mains running underneath the land and would require the statutory approval of the
Elected Members.
In the case of (details supplied) it would appear that the householders took it upon
themselves at a date unknown to incorporate the front portion into their properties as
there is no record of an approach by either to acquire the laneway from Dublin City
Council in advance of doing so.
Aerial imagery shows that a large shed has been constructed across the full width of
the midpoint of the laneway. It is not clear which householder carried out this work
but imagery confirms that it was done beyond the time limit within which the Council
could take any action. The rear portion of the former laneway would appear to remain
separate from both gardens but as it is now completely landlocked it is not possible
for Dublin City Council to access it for the purpose of maintenance. Dublin City
Council would be amenable to regularise the title position with regard to that rear
portion but this would be dependent on an agreement being reached between the
householders on the division of the land.
Contact: Oliver Hickey, Administrative Officer, Planning Department
Tel:
222 3055
Email: oliver.hickey@dublincity.ie
Page 30

Q25

Councillor Vincent Jackson
To ask the Director of Services to please look into this urgent issue. That the large
section of concrete footpath outside (details supplied) that the lip of this repair, that
was done a few years ago is standing proud of the existing path approximately 20
mm. I had my young daughter of 13 fall here recently whilst we were putting out
leaflets for a community clean up. She gashed her knee, however she will heal.
There are a number of older persons living along here for whom a fall could have
totally altered their lives; in addition there is a tree stump here for the past few years
awaiting removal.
Road Maintenance carried out an inspection of the footpath today and the defect at
this location has been allocated to our works list for repair.
Contact: Carl Ryan-Operations & South Central Area Engineer
Tel: 222 8812
Email: roadmaintenance@dublincity.ie
Parks can arrange for the stump to be removed and request that paving carry out
repairs to the footpath.
Contact:
Tel:
Email:

Q26

Brid Brosnan, Executive Parks Superintendent
2223144
Brid.Brosnan@dublincity.ie

Councillor Vincent Jackson
To ask the Director of Services that Dublin City Council please look at the very badly
repaired footpath outside (details supplied) This footpath is a serious accident waiting
to happen if not properly re-instated as a matter of urgency.
Reply
Please be advised that Road Maintenance Services has notified Irish Water on March
15th 2021 of the defective temporary reinstatement and requested the repair of same
at the address specified. Irish Water are currently experiencing a high volume of emails
recently and have not provided an update on repair. Road Maintenance Services will
provide an update once received from Irish Water.
Contact: Finan Dooley, Executive Engineer, Roads & Traffic
Tel: 222 6727
Email: finan.dooley@dublincity.ie

Q27

Councillor Vincent Jackson
To ask the Director of Services that Dublin City Council please ask Irish Rail why it is
deemed necessary to use the major air horns along the Dublin - Cork mainline
railway, which backs along Cloverhill Road, Ballyfermot, Dublin 10 all the time. I
recently had two residents tell me of the constant noise from the locomotives and one
resident recorded the noise. It is having a major impact on the lives of people who
live along this railway line. I would be very grateful if Irish Rail could be asked why
and what efforts are they going to take to reduce / stop this practice.
Reply
Irish Rail have given a holding response pending a further investigation. A whistle
board is located here and the horn is to alert patrolling staff to trains at full linespeed

Page 31

approaching the bridge at Le Fanu Road. Public Domain will update Cllrs with a full
response when it issues.
Contact: Anna McDermott, Public Domain Officer
Tel:
2225117
Email: anna.mcdernott@dublincity.ie
Q28

Councillor Vincent Jackson
To ask the Director of Services to please ask our adjoining local authority South
Dublin Co Council, to cut back a tree growing from the Gaels Park Drumfinn Avenue,
Ballyfermot, Dublin 10. The tree is growing in the park right next to the boundary of
(details supplied) this is creating all sorts of anti-social problems for the lady who
lives here on her own. I would ask they cut back the tree in question if possible.
Reply
This request has been passed on to South Dublin Parks Department for their
attention.
Contact: Brid Brosnan, Executive Parks Superintendent
Tel: 2223144
Email: brid.brosnan@dublincity.ie

Q29

Councillor Vincent Jackson
To ask the Director of Services, where a lane-way was closed to through pedestrian
traffic many years ago, and still owned by Dublin City Council, who is responsible for
substantial organic growth of weeds, trees etc in these lane-ways?
Reply
The Public Domain Officer will contact the councillor to seek clarification on the issue.
Contact: Anna McDermott, Public Domain Officer, South Central Area
Tel: 222 5117
Email: anna.mcdermott@dublincity.ie

Q30

Councillor Vincent Jackson
To ask the Director of Services, that as part of the new Dublin City Development
Plan, that areas like Drimnagh and Crumlin are prioritised for proper sustainable
development, taking into consideration the existing communities and that the
community leaders / residents groups are consulted in a timely manner. All stages of
the said groups to be kept informed of developments and that community
infrastructure is firmly seen as a core part of all such proposals.
Reply
The City’s urban villages including locations such as Drimnagh and Crumlin are at the
heart of residential communities. They function to serve the needs of the local
communities providing a range of commercial and community uses for surrounding
communities.
The next development plan will identify a hierarchy of urban centres outside of the City
centre including those urban villages which provide for the daily shopping needs and
local services of a residential community.
It is acknowledged that locations such as Drimnagh and Crumlin have the potential to
fulfil the ‘15 Minute City’ role. Those elements of the ‘15 Minute City’ concept, such as

Page 32

compact urban and mixed use development, higher urban densities, viable commercial
cores with a comprehensive range of high quality community and commercial facilities
and high quality urban environments, and high levels of access to quality public
transport / the development of sustainable transport modes, will be recommended for
inclusion in the next Development Plan. The plan will also consider how appropriate
community, cultural and social infrastructure will be delivered to serve the needs of
communities.
Contact:
Tel:
E-mail:
Q31

Erika Casey, Senior Planner
222 6199
erika.casey@dublincity.ie

Councillor Vincent Jackson
To ask the Director of Services to ask the Traffic Department to please look at the
various junctions along Drumfinn Road, Ballyfermot for serious potential accidents.
This area is a hub with 3 schools, Garda Station, Youth Reach Partnership and many
shops and services. However the parking here has now gone mental with cars and
vans parking at the corners. For example, Gurteen Road and Drumfinn Road you
need to get half way out to see oncoming traffic if turning from Gurteen Park onto
Drumfinn Road, due to the corner area being blocked with traffic. It’s the same at
Drumfinn Park on both sides entering Drumfinn Road, I have seen some minor
accidents happening here all because of this poor parking at junctions. I would ask it
be addressed with double yellow lines, street signage etc.
Reply
The Dublin Street Parking Services will be asked to enforce against illegal parking on
Drumfinn Road at the junctions with Gurteen Road, Gurteen Park and Drunfinn Park,
Ballyfermot.
Contact: Hugh Fahey, Administrative Officer, Parking Policy and Enforcement.
Tel: 222 3847.
Email: hugh.fahey@dublincity.ie
The Traffic Advisory Group will assess the junctions along Drumfinn Road to make
sure that the appropriate road markings and signage are in place. Ref. No. 7019918.
Contact: Niall O’Neill, South Central Area Engineer.
Tel.
222 6393.
Email: niall.oneill@dublincity.ie

Q32

Councillor Sophie Nicoullaud
To ask the Director of Services to add cycle parking at the Walkinstown Green
53°19'16.3"N 6°20'06.0"W
Reply
The requested location at Walkinstown Green, will be examined and if deemed
appropriate, cycle parking will be installed in a future batch of the On-Street Cycle
Parking.
Contact: Chris Adamson Executive Engineer
Tel: 2223970
Email: chris.adamson@dubincity.ie

Q33

Councillor Sophie Nicoullaud

Page 33

To ask the Director of Services for an update on the scheduled capital work for
Camac Park. New developments are taking place faster than any public
improvement. Residents have major complaints with road surface situation. This is to
be fixed quickly before anyone takes legal action against the council over danger of
road surface.
Reply
It was the intention of the Ballyfermot Area office to organise an interdepartmental
meeting early 2020 to progress discussions regarding road resurfacing,
environmental improvements, cleansing, traffic enforcement, waste management etc.
With Covid 19 impacting hugely on all aspects of the local authority’s work, and
indeed changing the priority of some works, no progression has been made to date
regarding this discussion.
Contact: Kay Noonan-Cork, Local Area Manager, Ballyfermot Area Office
Tel: 222 4667
Email: kay.noonan-cork@dublincity.ie
Road Maintenance Services are not aware of any planned Capital Works for Camac
Park. At present, it is not possible to install gullies on the road in Camac Park
because there is no Surface Water drainage system within the development to
connect them to. The Local South Central Area Office and DCC Drainage Division
may have some comment to make in relation to this matter. The development needs
a Road Design, Surface Water sewer design and a funding source to be identified in
the first instance in order to progress this matter to construction stage. In the
meantime Road Maintenance Services will arrange temporary repairs to be carried
out to the carriageway on Camac Park.
Contact: Carl Ryan-Operations & South Central Area Engineer.
Tel: 222 8812
E-mail: roadmaintenance@dublincity.ie
Q34

Councillor Sophie Nicoullaud
To ask the Director of Services to add secured cycling parking at Ballyfermot Area
Office for staff and visitors.
Reply
It is intended to include Sheffield bike stands in the upgrade of the Civic Park with
further discussion to take place with Roads regarding the possibility of including
covered bike stands at this location.
Contact: Kay Noonan Cork, Ballyfermot/Drimnagh Local Area Manager
Tel:
222 4667
Email: kay.noonan_cork@dublincity.ie

Q35

Councillor Tina MacVeigh
To ask the Director of Services to request our Public Domain unit to conduct a clean-up
in the environs of Long Place /Pim Street and to organise planting at the base of trees in
the vicinity so as to deter use as dog litters and litter bins.
Reply
The trees growing on Pim Street/Long Place are growing in grass and parks do not
think that replacing the grass with planting will deter use by dogs or as litter bins.
Contact:

Brid Brosnan, Executive Parks Superintendent

Page 34

Tel:
Email:
Q36

2223144
brid.brosnan@dublincity.ie

Councillor Tina MacVeigh
To ask the Director of Services to request our Traffic section to carry out a review of the
exit from Memorial gardens to Islandbridge with a view to implementing some safety
measures generally and in particular for cyclists. Some suggestions/observations from
local residents include:
1) Traffic mirrors on the trees to the left and right and opposite the entrance - so that
visibility of oncoming traffic would be greatly improved
2) An eye level traffic light for cyclists that would make it less likely for cyclists to break
the lights
3) Speed bumps to stop the vast majority of drivers breaking the speed limit as they
come off the motor way and onto this road, which is essentially a residential area - there
is an electronic sign which measures speed limits of cars but this is largely ignored.
Reply
1)The traffic department do not provide convex traffic mirrors as requested as they
give a distorted view of approaching traffic which is potentially hazardous and also
because such mirrors would attract a high degree of vandalism with associated
maintenance costs.
2) It is not generally DCC policy to install repeater signals for cyclists on pedestrian
crossings. It should be noted that there are two signals, a regular height signal and a
cantilever, in each direction at this location.
3) The principle document, to which Local Authorities adhere to in delivering best
practice to road design, is the Design Manual for Urban Roads and Streets,
published by the Department of Transport, Tourism & Sport in 2013. This document
says (under section 4.4.7) that vertical deflectors (speed ramps) are to be limited on
arterial roads (such as the South Circular Road) only to where in a city street a focal
point (visual distraction) is present. The document further guides that speed ramps
are primarily infrastructure for consideration on ‘Local streets’. As such the policy of
Dublin city Council is not to construct speed ramps on main arterial roads, including
circuitous routes such as the South Circular Road. However, Dublin City Council
have installed a Driver Feedback sign that displays current traffic speed (VMS sign)
facing outbound motorists to support the adherence to traffic law along this section
of carriageway. Dublin City Council will also look into the idea of installing speed
roundels in an effort to slow down the motorists even more but ultimately any
enforcement of the speed limit would be a matter of An Garda Síochána. Dublin City
Council will highlight this section of road at our monthly TAG meeting with An Garda
Síochána.
Ref. No. 7019973
Contact:
Tel.
Email:

Niall O’Neill, South Central Area Engineer.
222 6393.
niall.oneill@dublincity.ie

Contact:
Tel:
Email:

Karen Hosie, Senior Executive ITS Officer, Transportation.
222 5488.
karen.hosie@dublincity.ie

Page 35

Q37

Councillor Tina MacVeigh
To ask the Director of Services to confirm whether the laneway that runs behind the
dwelling at 22 Lourdes Road, Dublin 8, D08CHF4 is in the ownership and control of the
local authority and if so whether the Manager could undertake that the rubbish that has
accumulated in this laneway could be cleared. If not, could the Manager undertake to
contact the owners and request that the laneway be cleaned.
Reply
The former laneway known as “Back of the Pipes” which follows a culvert over the
Poddle River and stretches from Reuben Street\Dolphins Barn at one end to St. James
Walk\Grand Canal Basin at the other was closed as a public right of way in 1997.
While the laneway is in the ownership of Dublin City Council it no longer has control of
it and due to the construction of sheds and other structures by the owners of properties
abutting the laneway the area behind the dwelling in question is completely landlocked
and inaccessible to Council staff or members of the public.
Dumping in the laneway is a historic problem and due to its landlocked state a difficult
matter for DCC to deal with. It should be noted that due to the very restricted access
to the laneway, any rubbish present can only have originated from adjoining properties.
Property Management Section will arrange to undertake a drone survey of the area in
question and once the extent of the problem is ascertained will liaise with Waste
Management to determine an appropriate course of action.
Contact:
Tel:
Email:

Q38

Oliver Hickey, Administrative Officer
222 3055
oliver.hickey@dublincity.ie

Councillor Tina MacVeigh
To ask the Director of Services for an update on the consultation, procurement and
development of the Linear Park at Rialto.
Reply
There is one update following the linear park report submitted to the February area
committee:
Due to covid restrictions and the end of the planting season, the phase 1 works
commencement date has been pushed to Autumn 2021.
Contact: Suzanne O’ Connell, Executive Landscape Architect
Tel: 0876374397
Email: Suzanne.oconnell@dublincity.ie

Q39

Councillor Tina MacVeigh
To ask the Director of Services to request our Housing Maintenance section to
reinstate the central heating at the home of our tenant at (details supplied). Our
tenant disconnected the system on foot of a recommendation from Gas Networks
Ireland that the system was faulty and that there was a leak.
Reply
Gas Networks Ireland conformed that the tenant at this address contacted them
directly. The tenant requested Gas Networks Ireland to remove her meter. Gas

Page 36

Networks Ireland carried out the works per the tenant’s instruction. If the tenant
wishes to have her meter reinstated, she will need to contact Gas Networks Ireland.
Contact: Michelle Robinson, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance
Email: michelle.robinson@dublincity.ie
Tel:
2223517

Q40

Councillor Tina MacVeigh
To ask the Director of Services to request our Housing Maintenance section to install
a damp extraction unit in the home of our tenant at (details supplied) and to provide a
report on the source of the damp in our tenant's home.
Reply
Dublin City Council has made arrangements with Damp Doctor to visit this
property and carry out an inspection. Any necessary works identified in the report to
Dublin city Council will be undertaken by the council.
Contact: Michelle Robinson, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance
Email: michelle.robinson@dublincity.ie
Tel:
2223517

Q41

Councillor Michael Watters
To ask the Director of Services if it would be possible to reinstate the pedestrian
island that was removed from the South Circular Road in front of Rialto Medical
Centre, Dublin 8. Reinstatement of this island will make it easier for pedestrians,
particularly the elderly and disabled, to have safe access to the facility.
Reply
The Reinstatement of the pedestrian island on the South Circular Road will need to
be assessed by the Area Engineer. The councillor will be advised of the findings by
the Traffic Advisory Group in due course
Contact: Niall O’Neill, South Central Area Engineer, Traffic Advisory Group
Tel: 222 6393
Email: niall.oneill@dublincity.ie

Page 37

DUBLIN CITY COUNCIL
SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE
19th May 2021
Q1

Councillor Michael Pidgeon
To ask the Director of Services who is responsible for the lighting posts on the
footpath on the South Circular Road at the Hilton Hotel Kilmainham. The lights have
not functioned for some time and, if under DCC control, should be removed as
clutter.
Please find link below of the two lights in particular I'm thinking
of: https://goo.gl/maps/s4tSFDtLopoy5QXs5

Q2

Councillor Michael Watters
To ask the Director of Services if it would be possible to have the foliage pruned
along the River Camac, particularly the section that runs alongside the apartment
building at 205 Emmet Road, Inchicore, Dublin 8. Over the past few months, a large
wild growth outside the building has matured significantly.

Q3

Councillor Michael Watters
To ask the Director of Services if it would be possible to relocate the loading bay on
Parkgate Street closer to the businesses located at 25-35 Parkgate Street. The
loading bay was moved to accommodate a cycle lane, but now some suppliers will
not deliver to businesses at this location as they say the loading bay is located too far
away.

Q4

Councillor Tina MacVeigh
To ask the Director of Services in whose ownership the site of the old school on
School Street is, whether the department of education or the local authority and
whether any plans for development of the site have been devised.

Q5

Councillor Darragh Moriarty
To ask the Director of Services to consider the erection of a street sign at Poole
Terrace, Dolphins Barn Street, Dublin 8.

Q6

Councillor Darragh Moriarty
To ask the Director of Services to place signs up at the corner of New
Ireland/Herberton Road to let drivers know that it is illegal to park on the corner, as
drivers don’t seem to be aware of the issue and are being towed.

Q7

Councillor Darragh Moriarty
To ask the Director of Services for DCC to install a feeder light going from South
Circular Road to Cork St at Dolphins Barn junction and if she can make a statement
on the matter.

Q8

Councillor Darragh Moriarty
To ask the Director of Services the status of a derelict dwelling at (details supplied).
Is this site on the derelict sites register, what action has been taken by DCC to bring
it back into use and can a statement be made on the matter.

Q9

Councillor Darragh Moriarty
To ask the Director of Services to provide an update on DCC's involvement with the
Iveagh Market. I understand there are plans for DineTown to begin operations in the
market this summer. It is fantastic to hear that this amenity will be used, but can you
confirm what the current status is with regard to plans to for regeneration and make a
comment on the matter?

Page 39

Q10

Councillor Darragh Moriarty
To ask the Director of Services to provide an update on the roll out sensor/'touchfree' pedestrian crossings as traffic lights. These have been introduced to stop
people from touching public surfaces during the COVID-19 pandemic, but they are in
the very small minority. Can the Director confirm if there are plans to rolls these out
further and upgrade existing traffic light/pedestrian infrastructure?

Q11

Councillor Máire Devine
To ask the Director of Services to reconfigure the dead space at the corner of Cork
Street/Donore Avenue adjacent to Brú Chaoimhin where haphazard parking occurs.
To provide planters and other suitable measures that would make it an attractive spot
and assist with the greening of the Liberties.

Q12

Councillor Máire Devine
To ask the Director of Services to remove the bin at the old entrance to Kilmainham
Gaol. This is situated slap bang at the historic entrance and is often overflowing.

Q13

Councillor Máire Devine
To ask the Director of Services to assess how the junction at McGovern’s
Corner/Cork Street/Donore Avenue can be reconfigured. Locals and motorists are
expressing concern at the confusing multi traffic system and the safety risks posed.

Q14

Councillor Máire Devine
To ask the Director of Services for an update on the assessment of windows/doors at
Thomas Court complex and provide a timeline for these sympathetic essential
refurbishments.

Q15

Councillor Máire Devine
To ask the Director of Services to provide an interpretation of the plans for the
boundary wall between residential homes at St James Avenue, Dublin 8 and the
proposed development at The Old Steel Works, 32a St James Street. Many of the
residents are elderly and find the plans very difficult to interpret. There is concern for
their homes and boundary walls as well as the potential destruction of the biodiversity
that includes many nesting birds on both sides of the wall.

Page 40

South Central Area - TAG Meeting Minutes for Noting
(Area Committee Date: 19/05/2021)
Request Description

Topic

Road

Post

1

7011708 Q 20
SCAC
10/19

Yellow Box

OLD KILMAINHAM
(SC)

Dublin 8 At the junction with Brookfield
Road.

Recommended SR recommended - Install yellow box at the junction of Brookfield
Road and Old Kilmainham Road.

2

7016623

Traffic Calming

THOMAS MOORE
ROAD (SC)

Dublin 12 on the road.

Not
SR Not recommended. After a site inspection the area engineer
Councillor 01/09/2020 0
Recommended did not notice any speeding in the area at that time so he carried
out a 24hr speed survey for Thomas Moore Road. The results of
the speed survey came back with readings of 0.25% speed
violation and the 85th percentile reading of only 34km/h during the
24hr period within a 50Km/hr speed limit. With this information
and the fact it’s already traffic calmed with ramps it would not be
recommended to have any additional traffic calming measures
installed on this road.

3

7017308

Disab Park Bay
Residential

CLARENCE MANGAN Dublin 8 outside 31.
ROAD (SC)

Recommended SR recommended – After a site visit it was noted that there was a Member of 12/10/2020 0
high demand for parking in the area. For this reason I would
the Public
recommend a disabled parking bay outside number 31 Clarence
Mangan Road in the proximity of LS2 (not outside 31 Oscar
Square which is beside it).Stat – install a disabled bay parallel to
the kerb centred outside number 31 Clarence Mangan Road

4

90049051 SP_37922 Pedestrian
Crossing

KYLEMORE ROAD
(SC)

Recommended SR Recommended -This Pedestrian Crossing at the Kylemore
Road and Bluebell Avenue. was assessed and recommended but
did not make the shortlist for implementation for 2021, we will re
assess the matter with a view to inclusion on the 2022 TAG
capitol works.

Page 41

Item Enquiry SP Ref

Dublin 10 on the west leg of the junction.

Tag Result

Tag Comments

06/05/2021
4 Items
Page 1 of 1
Request By Received Sec
Councillor 08/10/2019 0

Councillor 08/05/2017 0

Traffic Service Requests,
Status Report at 15/04/2021
South Central Area Committee Meeting 19/05/2021

Traffic Advisory Group (TAG) Service Request Statistics

No. TAG Requests received since previous report

12
214

Total TAG Requests currently open on Confirm

Breakdown of TAG Requests currently open on Confirm
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Stage 4
Stage 5
Appeal

0
146
1
41
25
1

General traffic service requests not requiring Statutory Orders.
Total Non Tag requests received since previous
report
Total Non Tag requests currently open on
Confirm.

11
119

Traffic Advisory Group Status Reports
Explanation of Stages:
 Stage 1 - Set up file, Assignment to Engineer, etc
 Stage 2 - Assessment, Site surveys, review statutory orders, etc
 Stage 3 - Consultations, with Garda, Dublin Bus, Luas, NTA, Local residents / businesses, etc
 Stage 4 - Decision, TAG group, statutory orders, etc



Stage 5 - Implementation, signs, lines, construction, signal changes, certifications, etc

Page 43

Status Report

Monday 26 April 2021

214 Items
Item Enquiry SP Ref

Site

Subject

Description

Logged Status

1

90047618 SP_36472 BASIN STREET LOWER (SC) Cycle Track

request for cycle lane on Basin View

09/02/2017 15:53:32
2

2

90048435 SP_37298 OSCAR SQUARE (SC)

Introduction of Scheme on the road.

03/04/2017 10:47:43
2

3

90048570 SP_37433 BRIDGE STREET LOWER (SC) Add Pedestrian Phase

Full wrap-around

07/04/2017 08:51:19
2

4

90048716 SP_37583 GRATTAN CRESCENT (SC)

Pedestrian Crossing

Pedestrian crossing, Inchicore National
School, Grattan Crescent

19/04/2017 13:23:31
2

5

90048834 SP_37703 CHAPELIZOD ROAD (SC)

Cycle Track

request for more cycle lanes

26/04/2017 16:17:13
2

6

90049050 SP_37921 KYLEMORE ROAD (SC)

Pedestrian Crossing

on all legs of the junction.

08/05/2017 20:21:24
2

7

90049051 SP_37922 KYLEMORE ROAD (SC)

Pedestrian Crossing

on the west leg of the junction.

08/05/2017 20:22:50
2

8

90049155 SP_38028 CHAPELIZOD ROAD (SC)

Cycle Track

through the village

15/05/2017 16:53:28
2

9

90049816 SP_38699 GREENVILLE AVENUE (SC)

P&D/Permit Park (Extend Area) Request to extend area outside 5 Greenville 14/06/2017 11:49:58
2
Avenue to include two parking spaces.

10

90050178 SP_39065 MEATH STREET (SC)

Pedestrian Zone

carry out necessary feasibility study for the
street

06/07/2017 12:50:19
2

11

90050559 SP_39457 EMERALD SQUARE (SC)

Double Yellow Lines

outside and adjacent to No. 1.

31/07/2017 15:21:50
2

12

90051520 SP_40429 BRIDGEFOOT STREET (SC)

Pedestrian Crossing

Request for pedestrian crossing at site of
new park

22/09/2017 10:24:38
2

13

90051548 SP_40457 WORMWOOD GATE (SC)

Pedestrian Crossing

across Wormwood Gate at junction with
Bridge Street

26/09/2017 00:00:00
2

14

90051765 SP_40679 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing

Outside Gael Scoil Inchicore

06/10/2017 00:00:00
2

15

7001529

JAMES'S STREET (SC)

Cycle Track

Extend cycle lane towards luas tracks

01/02/2018 10:11:41
2

16

7001530

JAMES'S STREET (SC)

Clearway (Amend Hours)

extned hours of clearway cars constantly
blocking cycle lane

01/02/2018 10:12:56
2

17

7002451

PIM STREET (SC)

Double Yellow Lines (Extend)

extend the dyls by 6 meters to the same
length as the continuous white line .

17/04/2018 08:33:11
2

18

7002979

BELLEVUE (SC)

Coach Parking

Change Bus Stop to Coach Bay

21/05/2018 16:29:35
2

19

7004014

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) Clearway (Amend Hours)

extend hours of clearway between above
roads

30/07/2018 11:49:44
2

20

7004039

WALKINSTOWN AVENUE (SC) ITS Right Turn Filter Light

Without the aid of a right turn traffic light,
motorists find turning right at this junction
very unsafe and difficult to gauge

31/07/2018 09:26:09
2

21

7005071

BRIDGEFOOT STREET (SC)

Traffic Calming

Review of junction

25/09/2018 12:30:05
2

22

7005226

OLD NAAS ROAD (SC)

Pedestrian Crossing

Pedestrian crossing for high number of
employees crossing between buildings.

03/10/2018 12:45:36
2

23

7005967

JAMES'S WALK (SC)

Traffic Calming

difficult to get from one side of James’ Walk 14/11/2018 11:18:40
2

24

7006145

SAINT LAURENCE ROAD (SC) Traffic Lights (new)

25

RIALTO COTTAGES (SC)
7006291 Q 14 21/11/2018

P&D/Permit Parking

Pedestrian Crossing

Page 45
Page 1 of 10

Additional light for visibility purposes for
traffic turning left over bridge towards
Phoenix Park.

21/11/2018 17:55:44
2

Where Rialto Cottages meet the Luas line

30/11/2018 10:11:02
2

Status Report

Monday 26 April 2021

214 Items
Item Enquiry SP Ref

Site

Subject

Description

Logged Status

Traffic Calming

on the road

30/11/2018 11:05:52
2

Yellow Box (Extend)

Extend yellow box to ensure traffic from
Ballyfermot & Chapelizod both have
sufficient space.

30/11/2018 12:52:24
2

26

LE FANU ROAD (SC)
7006296 Q. 36 21/11/2018

27

7006314

CHAPELIZOD BYPASS (SC)

28

7006352

SAINT LAURENCE ROAD (SC) Yellow Box

On the road

04/12/2018 11:22:05
2

29

7006533

FRANCIS STREET (SC)

Pedestrian crossing at this location.

12/12/2018 13:24:18
2

30

7006935

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) TAG General Engineer Query

Parking bay between BS 1348 and Spencer 21/01/2019 09:32:14
2
Street South be removed

31

7007100

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) Continuous White Line

Place markings to highlight that there are
two lanes.

28/01/2019 12:30:42
2

32

7007101

SUIR ROAD (SC)

Continuous White Line

Place markings to highlight that there are
two lanes.

28/01/2019 12:34:04
2

33

7007182

CORK STREET (SC)

TAG General Engineer Query

Install more visible lighting, or a filter light at 31/01/2019 16:30:21
2
this junction.

34

7007294

SUIR ROAD (SC)

ITS Right Turn Filter Light

where Suir Road meets Bulfin Road

07/02/2019 16:13:01
2

35

FANU
7007597 Q 27 SCACLE
FEB
19 ROAD (SC)

3.5 Tonne Limit

When was ban lifted/removed?

25/02/2019 11:41:51
2

36

7007843

MEATH PLACE (SC)

Traffic Calming

On the road

11/03/2019 09:15:54
2

37

11077011 2432726

BRIDGEFOOT STREET (SC)

Pedestrian Crossing

on the road

19/03/2019 12:23:22
2

38

7008129

DRIMNAGH ROAD (SC)

Clearway

Clearway in unamed laneway to side of
property No. 121 Drimnagh Road

27/03/2019 16:26:25
2

39

7008492

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) Traffic Calming

Traffic calming measures for this location.

15/04/2019 15:50:00
2

40

7008552

PIM STREET (SC)

P&D/Permit Parking

Permit parking scheme for this location.

17/04/2019 16:34:53
2

41

7008599

LUCAN ROAD (SC)

Bus Lane

between west of Belgrove Park and
Maryfield Nursing Home. (End of Bus Lane
and measurement required for Stat for this
section of Bus Lane).

23/04/2019 11:10:08
2

42

7008757

CHAPELIZOD BYPASS (SC)

Yield Sign (Rescind)

Rescind Yield sign at traffic lights at this
junction.

30/04/2019 16:57:18
2

43

7008812

VICTORIA QUAY (SC)

Cycle Track

Cycle lane for this location.

02/05/2019 17:54:25
2

44

7008880

VAUXHALL AVENUE (SC)

3.5 Tonne Limit

Restriction for heavy vehicles to safeguard
pedestrians.

07/05/2019 16:14:32
2

45

7009006

GREENVILLE AVENUE (SC)

Traffic Calming

Traffic calming measures to prevent vehicles 13/05/2019 15:29:04
2
speeding from Donore Avenue.

46

7009041

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) Double Yellow Lines

Outside 376 South Circular Road

47

7009098

IRWIN STREET (SC)

Pedestrian Crossing

Pedestrian crossing requested, due to
15/05/2019 15:21:06
2
frequency & speed of traffic at this location.

48

7009116

MEATH STREET (SC)

3.5 Tonne Limit

Restrict access on roads leading onto Meath 16/05/2019 13:22:05
2
Street, as it is too narrow to accomodate
recent increase in HGV traffic.

49

7009186

CHAPELIZOD HILL ROAD (SC) Double Yellow Lines

Pedestrian Crossing

Page 46
Page 2 of 10

14/05/2019 12:10:03
2

DYLs for each side of entrance to Annamore 17/05/2019 18:08:34
2
Court, to prevent obstruction by parked cars.

Status Report

Monday 26 April 2021

214 Items
Item Enquiry SP Ref

Site

Subject

Description

Logged Status

50

7009232

BUNTING ROAD (SC)

No Right Turn (Rescind)

Rescind "No Right Turn" to prevent
rat-running through Harty Road, Thomas
Moore Road & Walkinstown Road.

20/05/2019 16:31:47
2

51

7009399

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) School Warden

Outside the Griffith Barracks Multi Denom
School, Carry out in September

28/05/2019 13:21:52
2

52

7009552

HERBERTON ROAD (SC)

Pedestrian Crossing

Crossing from Rialto into Crumlin.

05/06/2019 16:47:34
2

53

7009582

RAHEEN PARK (SC)

Traffic Calming

Speed ramps, speed limit signs &
"children-at-play" signs for the road.

06/06/2019 18:13:01
2

54

7009646

MILL STREET (SC)

Double Yellow Lines

access and egress issues at the location due 11/06/2019 19:13:11
2
to new developments in the vicinity of
Warrenmount Centre

55

7009776

HARCOURT LODGE (SC)

Parking Restrictions

Parking restrictions to preserve access for
bin collection & storage.

56

7009787

OLIVER BOND STREET (SC)

Traffic Calming

traffic calming or other measures to prevent 19/06/2019 13:09:22
2
use of Oliver Bond Street as a rat-run.

57

7009872

HERBERTON ROAD (SC)

Parking Restrictions

on the road

24/06/2019 09:56:01
2

58

7009879

DONORE AVENUE (SC)

Parking Restrictions

Donore Avenue junction with Cork Street.

24/06/2019 12:01:59
2

59

7009988

CLEGGAN AVENUE (SC)

Traffic Calming

Traffic calming measures to prevent
speeding between ramps, along by the
green area.

28/06/2019 15:23:17
2

60

7010209

ERRIGAL ROAD (SC)

Parking Restrictions

on the road

11/07/2019 09:15:38
2

61

7010228

KYLEMORE ROAD (SC)

Yellow Box (Extend)

at junction with R148

12/07/2019 15:22:26
2

62

7010230

KYLEMORE ROAD (SC)

TAG General Engineer Query

extend existing pencil bollards at the slip
road for R148

12/07/2019 16:12:09
2

63

7010709

DONORE AVENUE (SC)

School Warden

outside Dunore Credit Union. Request from 08/08/2019 10:05:03
2
Resident Association.

64

TOUCHE ROAD (SC)
7010915 Q 44 SCACLA
07/19

Double Yellow Lines

DYLs to deal with double-parking and
"park-and-ride" commuters from the LUAS
stop.

65

7010992

BRIDGE STREET UPPER (SC) Cycle Track

Cycle lane and advance stop box for
26/08/2019 12:21:42
2
crossing the bridge when traveling from the
top of the hill.

66

7011010

CON COLBERT ROAD (SC)

Yellow Box (Extend)

Extend yellow box on inbound lane to
facilitate buses merging into general traffic
from the bus lane.

26/08/2019 15:23:05
2

67

7011091

GRATTAN CRESCENT (SC)

Advance Cycle Stop Line

Install advance stop line at traffic lights.

30/08/2019 16:37:46
2

68

7011448

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) Cycle Track

Extend existing cycle lane in Rialto up to
20/09/2019 15:34:58
2
Haroldville Avenue, and install 24hr signage.

69

7011451

OLD KILMAINHAM (SC)

Pedestrian Crossing

Pedestrian crossing or zebra crossing for
this junction, particularly for residents
coming from Brookfield Road.

23/09/2019 12:23:37
2

70

7011708

KILMAINHAM (SC)
Q 20 SCACOLD
10/19

Yellow Box

At the junction with Brookfield Road

08/10/2019 11:24:31
2

71

7011718

JAMES'S STREET (SC)

Cycle Track

Extend cycle track approximately 100m
alongside Luas track running beside Mary
Aikenhead House.

08/10/2019 12:36:31
2

Page 47
Page 3 of 10

18/06/2019 16:53:36
2

21/08/2019 09:43:42
2

Status Report

Monday 26 April 2021

214 Items
Item Enquiry SP Ref

Site

Subject

Description

Logged Status

72

7011850

NAAS ROAD (SC)

Bus Lane (Change of hours)

Change hours on inbound and outbound
lanes to 24/7.

16/10/2019 14:50:19
2

73

7011987

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) Bus Lane

Can the bus lanes on both sides of this
junction be changed here to extend the
whole way to the stopline with a left turn
except buses road marking.

23/10/2019 14:13:45
2

74

7012368

INCHICORE ROAD (SC)

Cycle Track

Road markings show that cyclists are
12/11/2019 12:26:31
2
expected to share the motorists lane.
RUS009 is shown. W143 is more
appropriate. It might help if "Cyclists Sharing
the Road" was also included under the sign.

75

7012406

PARK WEST AVENUE (SC)

Pedestrian Crossing

Pedestrian crossing requested due to
increase in commuters at this location.

76

7012783

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing

Pedestrian crossing for crossing east to west 04/12/2019 16:47:14
2
across South Circular Road.

77

7013012

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) Double Yellow Lines

either side of new traffic island outsie St
Andrews community hall.

17/12/2019 12:00:35
2

78

7013266

FORBES LANE (SC)

TAG General Engineer Query

Request to widen footpath

14/01/2020 11:59:49
2

79

7013300

BALFE ROAD (SC)

Traffic Calming

on the road.

16/01/2020 12:30:17
2

80

7013407

LUCAN ROAD (SC)

Traffic Calming

Various traffic calming measures for this
section of Lucan Road.

23/01/2020 12:05:16
2

81

7013455

THOMAS COURT (SC)

Entry Treatment

Entry treatment, ramps, and/or cycling logos 24/01/2020 12:49:52
2
to increase safety for cyclists on Thomas
Court.

82

7013517

BLUEBELL ROAD (SC)

Parking Restrictions

Alleviate the Traffic congestion around
28/01/2020 17:06:38
2
Bluebell Community Centre when there are
football matches taking place.

83

7013598

THOMAS STREET (SC)

No Left Turn

No Left Turns from John's Lane West &
John Street West to Thomas Street from
6am-10am.

31/01/2020 12:08:23
2

84

7013599

THOMAS STREET (SC)

No Right Turn

No right turn from Thomas Street to John's
Lane West.

31/01/2020 12:21:55
2

85

7013724

CLADDAGH GREEN (SC)

Disab Park Bay General

Assess existing parking space, and dished
footpath, to see if both are fit for purpose.

07/02/2020 16:39:41
2

86

7013938

LUCAN ROAD (SC)

TAG General Engineer Query

road markings and pavement and road
treatments.

20/02/2020 11:14:31
2

87

7014072

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) Loading Bay

Loading bay for shops and apartments at
Clancy Quay.

28/02/2020 12:06:41
2

88

7014083

MEATH STREET (SC)

Pedestrian Zone

on-street parking to be prohibited or
minimised.

02/03/2020 10:11:10
2

89

7014395

PIMLICO (SC)

Traffic Calming

Consider zebra crossing and traffic calming. 16/03/2020 15:08:25
2

90

7014489

REHOBOTH PLACE (SC)

Parking Restrictions

DYLs, Clearway or other measures to
26/03/2020 10:53:36
2
prevent obstruction of access at laneway for
emergency services.

91

7014510

CHAPELIZOD BYPASS (SC)

TAG General Engineer Query

regarding traffic lights.

Page 48
Page 4 of 10

13/11/2019 16:19:44
2

06/04/2020 14:36:38
2

Status Report

Monday 26 April 2021

214 Items
Item Enquiry SP Ref

Site

92

7014634

93

Description

Logged Status

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) Double Yellow Lines (Extend)

at the entrance to McCanns Builders
Providers where the bus lane ends and the
clearways starts.

23/04/2020 08:52:09
2

7014720

RAFTERS ROAD (SC)

TAG General Engineer Query

Records relating to when they were installed 30/04/2020 09:01:26
2
and why?

94

7014831

BALLYFERMOT DRIVE (SC)

Yield Sign

At the junction of ballyfermot drive and
05/05/2020 13:11:25
2
ballyfermot avenue. As cars turn right at the
park onto the avenue from the drive

95

7014842

CHERRY ORCHARD AVENUE TAG General Engineer Query
(SC)

expand the existing speed bumps on
Cherryorchard Avenue.

06/05/2020 11:22:14
2

96

7014942

SUIR ROAD (SC)

Suir road, Herberton, dolphin and sallys
bridge are huge barriers to pedestrians.

11/05/2020 16:05:40
2

97

7015061

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) TAG General Engineer Query

on the road.

22/05/2020 11:07:04
2

98

7015098

SANDFORD AVENUE (SC)

One-Way System

on the road.

27/05/2020 12:15:00
2

99

7015164

DRIMNAGH ROAD (SC)

One-Way System

one-way traffic trial system for minor roads in 05/06/2020 15:01:10
2
Drimnagh while maintaining the two-way
system on main through fare

100 7015194

CHERRY ORCHARD GREEN
(SC)

Traffic Calming

Request for ramp at entrance to Cherry
Orchard Green

08/06/2020 14:45:43
2

101 7015208

USHER STREET (SC)

One-Way System

on the road.

09/06/2020 11:05:18
2

102 7015521

THOMAS STREET (SC)

No Left Turn

on the road

23/06/2020 10:50:39
2

103 7015584

MOURNE ROAD (SC)

TAG General Engineer Query

dished kerb here 248 Mourne Rd. Both
sides of the road.

24/06/2020 09:05:28
2

Traffic Calming

Ongoing problems at junction with Mullingar 06/07/2020 09:46:48
2
House

ROAD (SC)
104 7015868 Q 12 SCACCHAPELIZOD
07 20

Subject

Pedestrian Zone (Rescind)

105 7015888

ARDEE STREET (SC)

Traffic Calming

See attached Council question.

06/07/2020 15:29:59
2

106 7015915

ROBERT EMMET WALK (SC)

Parking Restrictions

on the road.

09/07/2020 09:23:01
2

107 7015976

BLUEBELL ROAD (SC)

Disab Park Bay General

Can this wheelchair spot be extended to
facilitate the raft of wheelchair accessible
Van's using bluebell community facilities.

16/07/2020 09:36:38
2

108 7016580

BRIDGEFOOT STREET (SC)

Double Yellow Lines (Extend)

on the road.

31/08/2020 09:17:31
2

109 7016623

THOMAS MOORE ROAD (SC) Traffic Calming

traffic speeding up the road at approx. 80
KM per hour they urgently needs Ramps,
Traffic signs

01/09/2020 14:52:20
2

110 7016626

JAMESTOWN ROAD (SC)

on the road.

02/09/2020 11:16:18
2

111 7016628

SAINT LAURENCE ROAD (SC) Traffic Calming

Request for more speed ramps on St.
Lawrence's Road, Chapelizod.

02/09/2020 12:43:06
2

112 7016648

GALTYMORE ROAD (SC)

Parking Restrictions

on the road.

03/09/2020 12:53:23
2

113 7017153

ARDEE STREET (SC)

No Parking (Rescind)

on the road.

01/10/2020 10:08:19
2

114 7017308

CLARENCE MANGAN ROAD
(SC)

Disab Park Bay Residential

outside 31.

12/10/2020 14:16:30
2

Double Yellow Lines (Rescind)

Page 49
Page 5 of 10

Status Report

Monday 26 April 2021

214 Items
Item Enquiry SP Ref

Site

Subject

Description

115 7017567

VICTORIA QUAY (SC)

Pedestrian Crossing

There is no pedestrian crossing from point A: 27/10/2020 15:22:08
2
Victoria Quay (north footpath) to Points B:
Frank Sherwin Bridge (West Footpath) or the
small traffic island at the West End of
Victoria Quay

TAG General Engineer Query

Query regarding parking situation

30/10/2020 14:27:08
2

on the road

30/10/2020 15:10:22
2

CLADDAGH GREEN (SC)
116 7017658 Q 15 09/2020

THOMAS MOORE ROAD (SC) Traffic Calming
117 7017661 Q 21 09/2020
TAG General Engineer Query

concerns about a lack of disability access to 02/11/2020 08:42:04
2
Weaver Park, Cork Street, Dublin 8.

Speed Ramps

Alongside the 40 steps

02/11/2020 11:41:49
2

Clearway

on the road.

09/11/2020 08:25:32
2

121 7018178 Q7 12/2020CORK STREET (SC)

TAG General Engineer Query

Issues exiting at junction maybe yellow box 30/11/2020 14:51:20
2

122 7018182 Q8 12/2020JAMES'S STREET (SC)

TAG General Engineer Query

on the road

30/11/2020 14:58:14
2

Measures to deal with rat-running along
these roads.

08/12/2020 17:48:37
2

Pedestrian Crossing

on the road

11/01/2021 14:31:21
2

125 7018765

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing

on the road

26/01/2021 12:33:32
2

126 7018935

RUTLEDGE TERRACE (SC)

P&D/Permit Parking

Permit parking scheme for this street.

05/02/2021 14:00:39
2

127 7019036

EBENEZER TERRACE (SC)

P&D/Permit Parking

on the road

12/02/2021 13:57:03
2

128 7019150

RAFTERS ROAD (SC)

Parking Restrictions

Parking restrictions outside gates at side of 22/02/2021 09:11:46
2
house,

129 7019212

ROTHE ABBEY (SC)

Double Yellow Lines

Double yellow lines on the side of the road 25/02/2021 08:44:23
2
with dropped curbs would resolve the issue

130 7019324

IRWIN STREET (SC)

Traffic Calming

on the road.

03/03/2021 14:09:27
2

131 7019336

SAINT MARY'S CRESCENT
(SC)

Double Yellow Lines (Extend)

looking to get existing double yellow
extended by a few meters to facilitate
Special Needs school bus.

04/03/2021 09:22:16
2

132 7019372

NEW IRELAND ROAD (SC)

Double Yellow Lines

Putting double yellow lines to prohibit
parking

05/03/2021 10:14:36
2

133 7019376

DAVITT ROAD (SC)

ITS Left Turn Filter Rescind

The left turn from Dolphin Road via the side 08/03/2021 09:34:53
2
street to Slievenamon Road should be
banned as soon as possible. this turn can
easily be made at the signals.

134 7019388

KILMAINHAM LANE (SC)

P&D Parking (Rescind)

Remove one car parking space to make it
08/03/2021 13:18:52
2
possible for pedestrians to continue to walk
along Kilmainham Lane.

135 7019399

BOW LANE WEST (SC)

Traffic Calming

would be possible to introduce some traffic
calming measures at this junction

136 7019482

NEW IRELAND ROAD (SC)

Double Yellow Lines

DYLs to ensure acces for bin trucks, due to 16/03/2021 12:37:47
2
increased parking from staff and
construction workers from St James
Hospital.

118 7017667

MERTON AVENUE (SC)

Logged Status

119 7017691 Q 41 SCACMOUNT
10/20 BROWN (SC)
120 7017784

123 7018320

HUGHES ROAD SOUTH (SC)

MOUNTSHANNON ROAD (SC) Traffic Calming

ROAD (SC)
124 7018570 Q 30 SCACMADISON
01/21

Page 50
Page 6 of 10

09/03/2021 08:47:40
2

Status Report

Monday 26 April 2021

214 Items
Item Enquiry SP Ref

Site

Subject

Description

Logged Status

137 7019775

JAMESTOWN AVENUE (SC)

Traffic Calming

install speed ramps or an effective
alternative to slow down traffic on the road

01/04/2021 08:47:30
2

138 7019776

WALKINSTOWN AVENUE (SC) Zebra Crossing

zebra/pedestrian crossing , bollards so no
one can park directly outside the park.

01/04/2021 08:56:27
2

139 7019817

KILMAINHAM LANE (SC)

Parking Restrictions

Alter footpath or install DYLs at bollards to
enable pedestrian movement.

01/04/2021 17:43:27
2

140 7019880

RAFTER'S AVENUE (SC)

Double Yellow Lines

DYLs to allow larger vehicles to gain access 08/04/2021 15:17:10
2
to the road.

DRUMFINN ROAD (SC)
141 7019918 Q31 04/2021

TAG General Engineer Query

Double yellow lines, street signage etc.

142 7019972 Q 2 04/2021IRWIN COURT (SC)

Double Yellow Lines

ISLAND BRIDGE (SC)
143 7019973 Q 36 04/2021

TAG General Engineer Query

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) Ped. Refuge Island
144 7019974 Q 41 04/2021
Pedestrian Crossing

12/04/2021 14:28:45
2
14/04/2021 12:33:47
2

Carry out review of exit from Memorial
Gardens - 30kmph roundels

14/04/2021 12:41:59
2

Reinstate pedestrian island

14/04/2021 12:52:02
2

145 7019995

BOW LANE WEST (SC)

At the end of the lane pedestrian crossing is 15/04/2021 12:07:15
2
needed before a child is killed

146 7020026

INCHICORE TERRACE SOUTH Traffic Calming
(SC)

"Children-at-play" signage, or other traffic
calming measures for Inchicore Terrace
South.

15/04/2021 17:20:55
2

147 7000653

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) P&D/Permit Parking

at Nos. 480-490. partial scheme.Other
residents notified

29/11/2017 10:40:53
3

148 90044747 SP_12251 JOHN DILLON STREET (SC)

School Ahead Sign

on Thomas Davis St Sth & John Dillon St.

12/05/2014 10:52:45
4

149 90044771 SP_12638 BRIDGEFOOT STREET (SC)

Pedestrian Crossing

Across Bridgefoot Street at Usher's Quay.

29/05/2014 13:32:15
4

150 90045183 SP_18499 KYLEMORE WAY (SC)

Speed Ramps

on the road.

04/06/2015 15:25:45
4

151 90045579 SP_27667 CHERRY ORCHARD AVENUE Pedestrian Crossing
(SC)

at junction of Blackditch Rd and Cherry
Orchard Ave.

09/11/2015 11:44:20
4

152 90045603 SP_27824 PARK WEST AVENUE (SC)

at the roundabout, towards the Nangor
Road, on the hotel side of the road.

16/11/2015 15:43:36
4

153 90048110 SP_36969 CHAPELIZOD HILL ROAD (SC) Add Pedestrian Phase

at the junction of Chapelizod Hill
Road/Kylemore Road/Le Fanu Road.

10/03/2017 15:41:56
4

154 90048856 SP_37725 KYLEMORE ROAD (SC)

Pedestrian Crossing

Request for pedestrian crossing on
Kylemore Rd south of Bluebell Avenue.

27/04/2017 12:15:11
4

Traffic Island

155 7000767

REUBEN STREET (SC)

Speed Ramps

Speed survey for the increase in traffic
volume.

06/12/2017 11:52:16
4

156 7001340

LE FANU ROAD (SC)

Pedestrian Crossing

Pedestrian crossing at St. John's College
Ballyfermot.

22/01/2018 12:35:58
4

157 7002021

NEWMARKET (SC)

TAG General Engineer Query

Request for traffic study to be carried out in 15/03/2018 09:23:13
4
area

158 7003919

GREENVILLE PARADE (SC)

Double Yellow Lines (Extend)

Extend DYLS full way along railing as
23/07/2018 15:26:41
4
emergency vehicles are finding it difficult to
access terrace

159 7005301

CHAPELIZOD HILL ROAD (SC) Add Pedestrian Phase

Add pedestrian phase for safety of older
residents of Annamore Court.

08/10/2018 14:42:40
4

160 7007246

MOUNTSHANNON ROAD (SC) Traffic Calming

Measures to deal with speeding and
increased traffic from hospital.

05/02/2019 16:03:00
4

Page 51
Page 7 of 10

Status Report

Monday 26 April 2021

214 Items
Item Enquiry SP Ref

Site

Subject

Description

Logged Status

161 7007247

MAYFIELD ROAD (SC)

Traffic Calming

Measures to deal with speeding and
increased traffic from hospital.

05/02/2019 16:07:06
4

162 7008491

NEWMARKET STREET (SC)

Traffic Calming

"Children-at-play" signage and speed ramps. 15/04/2019 15:31:17
4

163 7008550

BULFIN COURT (SC)

Pedestrian Crossing

Pedestrian crossing to assist wheelchair
users.

17/04/2019 15:30:52
4

164 7009187

CHAPELIZOD HILL ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing

on the road

17/05/2019 18:16:00
4

165 7009554

CATHERINE STREET (SC)

166 7010100

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Build-Out

DRIVE (SC)
167 7010588 Q 33 JULY ROSSMORE
2019

Disab Park Bay Resid (Rescind) outside No. 6.

TAG General Engineer Query

05/06/2019 17:09:49
4

on the road

05/07/2019 12:44:48
4

Ramp to access footsteps

30/07/2019 11:56:27
4

168 7012195

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) Bus Lane (Change of hours)

Change operational hours to 7.00 – 10.00
and 16.00-19.00

01/11/2019 15:10:56
4

169 7015093

DONARD ROAD (SC)

on the road.

27/05/2020 10:41:13
4

170 7016944

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) Parking Restrictions

Convex mirror, or other measures, to
eliminate traffic visibility issues at exit to
Saint James's Wood.

17/09/2020 17:29:19
4

171 7017700

SAINT JOHN'S STREET (SC)

Disab Park Bay Resid (Rescind) outside no, 17

02/11/2020 14:20:59
4

172 7017856

SWEENEY'S TERRACE (SC)

Double Yellow Lines

On east side of Sweeney's Terrace to aid
access to depot

11/11/2020 11:41:44
4

173 7017976

DRUMFINN ROAD (SC)

Disab Park Bay General

at St. Lousies school, Drumfinm Road.

19/11/2020 10:30:43
4

JAMES'S WALK (SC)
174 7018166 Q3 SCAC 12/20

Double Yellow Lines

on the road

30/11/2020 12:18:01
4

DONORE AVENUE (SC)
175 7018186 Q11 12/2020

Pedestrian Crossing

Upgrade lights to include pedestrian crossing 30/11/2020 15:15:11
4

DONORE AVENUE (SC)
176 7018187 Q20 12/2020

Pedestrian Crossing

on the road

30/11/2020 15:20:50
4

When will pedestrian crossing be installed

30/11/2020 15:28:48
4

Children Crossing Sign

CHERRY ORCHARD AVENUE Pedestrian Crossing
177 7018188 Q25 12/2020
(SC)
178 7018321

MOUNTSHANNON ROAD (SC) Traffic Calming

Measures to deal with speeding on these
roads.

08/12/2020 17:50:29
4

179 7018322

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing

Pedestrian crossings for this section of
South Circular Road/junction with Mayfield.

08/12/2020 17:54:32
4

180 7018323

MAYFIELD ROAD (SC)

Yellow Box

Yellow box or pedestrian crossings for this
junction.

08/12/2020 17:59:01
4

TAG General Engineer Query

Request for Children At Play signs

22/12/2020 10:12:17
4
11/01/2021 08:56:32
4

DRUMFINN AVENUE (SC)
181 7018476 Q 32 12/2020
182 7018561

WALKINSTOWN PARADE (SC) 3.5 Tonne Limit

on the road.

183 7018677

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) No Left Turn Except Cyclists

Can the No left turn from SCR into
18/01/2021 13:47:34
4
Mountshannon Rd be modified to be `except
cyclists?

184 7018747

RIALTO COTTAGES (SC)

P&D/Permit Parking

Parking scheme for Rialto Cottages, Rialto
Street, Rialto Park & Rialto Court.

22/01/2021 15:14:40
4

Traffic Calming

on the road

05/02/2021 14:51:39
4

LOUGH CONN ROAD (SC)
185 7018937 Q 26 02/2021

Page 52
Page 8 of 10

Status Report

Monday 26 April 2021

214 Items
Item Enquiry SP Ref

Site

Subject

Description

Logged Status

186 7018944

BRANDON ROAD (SC)

Disab Park Bay Residential

in vicinity of No.69

08/02/2021 16:37:10
4

187 7019020

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) Disab Park Bay Residential

552 South Circular Road.

12/02/2021 09:11:40
4

188 7019387

SPERRIN ROAD (SC)

Double Yellow Lines

Double yellow lines to be added to prevent 08/03/2021 12:33:52
4
all day parking which prevents people turning
in the cul de sac after dropping people off

No U Turn

Cars coming of Chapelizod Byepass and
trying to do a U turn at the entrance to the
War Memorial Gardens

189 90045521 SP_20998 KILMAINHAM LANE (SC)

22/10/2015 15:52:36
5

190 7000683

TURVEY AVENUE (SC)

Stop Sign

on Turvey Avenue at the junction of Emmet 30/11/2017 09:14:21
5
Road.

191 7001522

JAMES'S STREET (SC)

Clearway (Amend Hours)

Extend Clearway hours on section between 31/01/2018 14:34:31
5
the end of the bus lane and the Luas Tracks.

192 7001900

WARRENMOUNT PLACE (SC) P&D/Permit Park (Change
Hours)

Extension of Pay & display Hours 24/7

06/03/2018 13:17:27
5

193 7002981

THOMAS COURT (SC)

Yield Sign

At junction

21/05/2018 16:31:45
5

194 7003849

THOMAS STREET (SC)

Bus Lane (Change of hours)

Looking to convert the outbound/inbound
18/07/2018 11:50:02
5
bus lane on Thomas street between
Bridgefoot Street and Watling Street to 7am
to 7pm

195 7004563

SAINT CATHERINE'S LANE
WEST (SC)

Parking Restrictions

Cars parked in laneway making it difficult for 29/08/2018 11:16:13
5
pedestrians to walk through.

196 7005728

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) P&D/Permit Parking

Parking scheme for this location. Mon-Sat
07.00 to 19.00 approved. MH

01/11/2018 13:30:29
5

197 7006863

THOMAS COURT (SC)

Stop Sign

Review of junction as it is very dangerous
and there have been a number of near
accidents.

15/01/2019 11:43:11
5

198 7007243

GALTYMORE ROAD (SC)

Yield Sign

Stop sign or Yield sign

05/02/2019 15:35:30
5

199 7008122

CHAPELIZOD ROAD (SC)

Cycle Track

Bus Stop recommendations

27/03/2019 15:13:29
5

200 7008333

SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD (SC) Clearway (Amend Hours)

South Circular Road from the junction with
Donore road to Mason Technology.

09/04/2019 12:37:40
5

201 7009060

CLOVERHILL DRIVE (SC)

Children Crossing Sign

"Children-at-play" signage requested due to 14/05/2019 16:35:51
5
speeding on this road.

202 7009864

BALLYFERMOT ROAD (SC)

No Right Turn

No Right Turn to prevent vehicles turning
into the industrial estate from creating a
pinch point at this location.

203 7009878

TYRCONNELL PARK (SC)

Children Crossing Sign

Request for Children Crossing Sign and also 24/06/2019 11:25:23
5
Cul-de-Sac Sign

204 7011852

BIGGER ROAD (SC)

Yield Sign

on the road.

16/10/2019 15:18:31
5

205 7011991

SPIDDAL ROAD (SC)

Yield Sign

Yield sign for this junction.

23/10/2019 15:37:03
5

206 7011992

SPIDDAL ROAD (SC)

Yield Sign

Yield sign for this junction.

23/10/2019 15:38:46
5

207 7011993

SPIDDAL ROAD (SC)

Yield Sign

Yield sign for this junction.

23/10/2019 15:40:44
5

208 7011994

SPIDDAL ROAD (SC)

Yield Sign

Yield sign for this junction.

23/10/2019 15:43:16
5

Page 53
Page 9 of 10

21/06/2019 16:19:58
5

Status Report

Monday 26 April 2021

214 Items
Item Enquiry SP Ref

Site

Subject

Description

Logged Status

209 7011995

SPIDDAL ROAD (SC)

Yield Sign

Yield sign for this junction.

23/10/2019 15:45:26
5

210 7011996

SPIDDAL ROAD (SC)

Yield Sign

Yield sign for this junction.

23/10/2019 15:49:53
5

211 7011997

SPIDDAL ROAD (SC)

Yield Sign

Yield sign for this junction.

23/10/2019 15:51:26
5

212 7012957

KYLEMORE ROAD (SC)

Yield Sign

Install additional Yield signage due to new 13/12/2019 13:50:11
5
flashing amber arrow for left turn onto Naas
Road.

213 7013156

LONG MILE ROAD (SC)

No U Turn

No U-Turn signage for this junction.

06/01/2020 15:47:16
5

214 7015969

MILL STREET (SC)

Loading Bay

or DYL or SYL to enable loading &
unloading.

15/07/2020 12:53:52
A

Page 54
Page 10 of 10

Page 55

Page 56

Housing & Community Services
Housing Development Section
Date: 19th May 2021
To the Chairman and Members of
The South Central Area Committee
_________________________________________________________________________________
Report under Part 8 Planning and Development Regulations 2001
Proposed Demolition of former Health Centre and St Michael’s community centre, Emmet
Road, Inchicore, Dublin 8.
_________________________________________________________________________________

SITE LOCATION AND LAYOUT

Site location

Aerial photograph

Page 57

Planning Ref 2221/21
Following initiation of the Part 8 process at the South Central Area Committee meeting on the 20th of
January 2021, Housing and Community Services Department lodged a Part 8 application on the 16th of
February 2021 for the demolition of St Michael’s Community Centre, the Health Services Executive
Building, and clearance of a disused halting site at Emmet Road, Dublin 8.
The period for submission of observations ended on 29th March 2021.
There were no third party observations made to the planning authority regarding this Local Authority
Works application. Internal DCC Departments made no objections to the proposed development subject
to conditions, which are noted.
The conclusion and recommendation of the Planner’s report is:
It is considered that the proposal will assist in facilitating the redevelopment of the subject site
and, subject to compliance with the recommendations set out below, it is considered that the
proposed development would not seriously injure the amenity of property in the vicinity and
accords with the City Development Plan and the proper planning and sustainable development
of the area.

Accordingly, the City Council is advised to approve the proposed demolition subject to the requirements
of DCC’s Transportation Planning Division, Drainage Division and Archaeology Department.
As approval of a Part 8 application is a reserved function of the Elected Members of the Council, it is
our intention to bring the proposal to the June 2021 Council Meeting for formal approval.

David Dinnigan
-----------------------Executive Manager

Page 58

SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE
DUBLIN CITY SPORT & WELLBEING PARTNERSHIP REPORT
MAY 2021

Delivery of DCSWP programmes for May 2021 remain subject to Covid-19 public health
restrictions. With the new roadmap for reopening announced on Thursday 29th April, the
number of face to face DCSWP programmes will slowly resume across our communities.
Limited re-engagement with schools has commenced following the return to education
Supporting communities across the city to stay active and healthy regardless of age, ability or
background remains a priority for Local Authorities. Over the past year DCSWP has focused
on exploring and developing new and innovative ways to deliver on the fundamental goals set
out in STRIDE, the strategic vision for the delivery of sport and physical activity in Dublin City.
DCSWP is currently waiting on official advice on sporting events/gatherings etc from Sport
Ireland. Sport Officers and Co-funded Officers are currently putting plans in place while
awaiting on official confirmation. The June report will be more area specific in relation to
upcoming programmes and initiatives.
Online/Social Media Supports:
 Twitter: @dccsportsrec
 Facebook: DublinCitySportandWellbeing
 Instagram: @dublincitysportandwellbeing
 Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership Virtual Hub: dcwsphub.ie

Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Virtual Hub
On Monday 15th March 2021 Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership was proud to
announce the launch of the new Virtual Hub. The Hub was created to ensure DCSWP
continues the very important work of supporting communities across the city and Dublin City
Council staff to stay physically and mentally active in a safe environment during this very
challenging time. Once restrictions are eased and lifted the Hub will also provide an
invaluable resource in terms of enhancing and supporting face to face programmes.
Delivery of programmes via the Hub kicked off with our Change For Life programme which
has been bringing people across the city together since 2013 as they embark on an 8-week
journey towards health and happiness. Over 2000 people registered for the 2021 online
1
Page 59

programme. Regardless of age, gender or ability there is something for everyone including
fitness classes, nutrition talks and weekly challenges.
The programme concluded for 2021 in early May. An update on further Hub programmes
will follow in the next report.

GAGA (Get All Girls Active) - Supporting Women In Sport
The Woman in Sport ‘GAGA’ (Get All Girls Active) has resumed following the return to onsite education. Five schools DCSWP applied for and secured funding to roll out this initiative
which led to the development and delivery of a school physical activity and exercise
programme aimed at teenage girls aged 12-15 years. The programmes is a wellbeing project
led by Children & Young People’s Services Board and delivered in partnership with DCSWP,
Healthy Ireland, Tusla and Pobal. While the return has been limited to two schools for safety
reasons plans are in place to further expand delivery as restrictions ease.

Keep Well Campaign
‘Keep Well’, the Healthy Ireland and Central government backed national campaign was
launched in October last year. The campaign aims to highlight the critical importance of
minding ourselves both physically and mentally during these uncertain times. Keep Well is
described as a ‘call to action’ to everyone across society whether at individual,
organisational or voluntary level to support people in discovering the many ways we can
work together to build community resilience.
With older people in our communities facing a lengthy cocooning period, supporting their
physical and mental health in the confinement of home became a matter of priority for
DCSWP from the start of the crisis.
Keep Well has provided a great opportunity for DCSWP to continue to prioritise older and
more vulnerable people and further enable them to stay active and healthy in the safety of
their own homes.
When planning the online Keep Well Older Adult programme, careful consideration was
given to how DCSWP could best support people to keep active virtually. Officers worked
closely with individuals to ease any concerns - advising on issues around technology and
engaging with coaches familiar to many of our participants.
Chair-based fitness classes were chosen with adaptations in place to ensure the
programme is fully inclusive.
The classes are delivered every Monday, Wednesday and Friday from 11.30am and provide
a mixture of fitness, pilates and yoga geared towards improving strength and balance.
 DCSWP reports weekly metrics to the LGMA via DCC’s Transformation Unit and the
Housing & Community section.
 The final two Keep Well initiatives are in the planning stages and will commence
following the easing of current restrictions.

2
Page 60

Orienteering
In late 2020 DCSWP teamed up with Orienteering Ireland to support young people, families
and adults of all abilities to take up something a little different. Orienteering provides great
opportunities for everyone to develop important life skills, build self-esteem and learn the
benefits of teamwork in the great outdoors. Training workshops delivered by Orienteering
Ireland in October 2020 have provided DCSWP Sport Officers with the knowledge and
practical understanding of teaching the basic skills of orienteering to get groups up and
running.
DCSWP has also worked closely with Orienteering Ireland around the use of technology to
map parks and locations across the Dublin region that can potentially play host to
orienteering programmes and maximise the delivery of this very positive outdoor initiative in
parks and green spaces in the city.
DCSWP continues to engage with Orienteering Ireland around the roll out and delivery of
the programme which will commence shortly.
Training
 Online Safeguarding Training to support compliance in local clubs and
organisations resumed with Safeguarding 1 Training on 15th February. Training is
provided by DCSWP Officers. Safeguarding 2 & 3 will be advertised following this
and further programmes will be delivered on an on-demand basis.
 In partnership with CARA, the online Disability & Inclusion and Autism in Sport
training programmes launched in 2020. This is part of a series of online Disability in
Sport training programmes already in operation. The programme for 2021 is
delivered on the first Tuesday of every month on an ongoing basis.


Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership has recently been invited to apply for the
CARA ‘Xcessible’ Bronze medal award. Through the Xcessible programme CARA
enables Local Sports Partnerships to provide meaningful opportunities for people of
disabilities to take part, sustain participation and excel in sport and physical activity.
DCSWP has 12-18 months before providing evidence of our work and journey to the
Xcessible committee. DCSWP Sport Officers and Administrative staff are currently
completing their Xcessible training to support the application.

Sport for Young People – Small Grant Scheme 2021
Sports clubs operating within the administrative area of Dublin City Council and affiliated to a
National Governing Body have been invited to apply for financial assistance from the Sport
for Young People – Small Grant Scheme (4-21 years of age) which is funded and
administered by Sport Ireland and the Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership.
The scheme, its purpose and information on the application process, was advertised on 31st
March on the DCC website and all social media platforms. It was also communicated via
email to National Governing Bodies and over 180 clubs on the DCSWP club database.

3
Page 61

Clubs across the city were then afforded three weeks to submit applications before the
closing date of Friday 23rd April.
Decisions on the 170 applications received for 2021 will be submitted in due course.
Co-Funded Programmes

Engagement with schools and delivery has resumed in keeping with restrictions. School
programmes (Athletics, Boxing, Cricket, Football, Rowing and Rugby) delivered by DCSWP
co-funded officers will continue and expand.
Online supports for all age groups continue.
Upcoming:
DCSWP events/programmes will be supporting and linking in with the following national and
international programmes
Date:
1- 31 May
15th May
31st May - June
6th
14-20 June
21st June

Programme/Event/Initiative
Bealtaine Festival
Walk to School Safely

Target Group:
Age & Oppurtunity
Green Schools An Taisce

European Mile
Men’s Health Awareness Week
International Dayg of Yoga

Athletics Ireland
Mens Health Forum In Ireland
United Nations

 Development of upcoming face to face programmes are in the planning stages with
covid-safe outdoor summer multi-sport programmes for communities remaining a
priority.
CONTACT DETAILS :
Name
Role
Shauna Mc Intyre
Aideen O’Connor

Colin Sharkey
Catherine Flood
Gareth Herbert
Sharon Kelly
Igor Khmil
Will Morris
Lisa Kelly

Contact Information

General Manager,
DCSWP
Programmes &
Services Manager,
DCSWP
Office Manager,
DCSWP
Sport Officer, DCSWP
Sport Officer, DCSWP
Sport Officer, DCSWP
Sport Officer, DCSWP
Sport Officer, DCSWP
Sport Inclusion &
Integration Officer,
DCSWP

shauna.mcintyre@dublincity.ie
aideen.oconnor@dublincity.e

Colin.sharkey@dublincity.ie
Catherine.flood@dublincity.ie
Gareth.herbert@dublincity.ie
Sharon.kelly@dublincity.ie
Igor.khmil@dublincity.ie
William.morris@dublincity.ie
Lisa.Kelly@dublincity.ie

4
Page 62

Nuala O’Donovan

David Phelan
Colette Quinn
Gerard O’Donnell
Marc Kenny
Jonathon Tormey
David Rake
Pearl Slattery

Gareth Murray
Fintan Mc Allister
Ed Griffin
Aoife Byrne

Sport Inclusion &
Integration Officer,
DCSWP
Health Promotion &
Improvement Officer
Development Officer,
Athletics
Development Officer,
Athletics
Development Officer,
F.A.I.
Development Officer,
F.A.I.
Development Officer
Women’s
Development Officer,
FAI
Development Officer,
Rugby
Development Officer,
Cricket
Development Officer,
Boxing
Development Officer,
Rowing

Nuala.odonovan@dublincity.ie

David.phelan6@mail.dcu.ie
colettequinn@athleticsireland.ie
gerardodonnell@athleticsireland.ie
Marc.kenny@dublincity.ie
Jonathon.tormey@fai.ie
David.rake@fai.ie
Pearl.slattery@fai.ie

Gareth.murray@leinsterrugby.ie
Fintan.mcallister@cricketleinster.ie
shandygriffin@hotmail.com
Aoife.byrne@getgoinggetrowing.ie

REPORT BY:
Dee O’Boyle
Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing
dee.oboyle@dublincity.ie

5
Page 63

Planning and Property Development Department
Civic Offices

23/04/2021
To the Chairperson and Members of
The South Central Area Committee
Meeting: 19/05/2021
Item No:

With reference to a proposed disposal of a substation site, wayleave and right of way
at Chamber Street, Dublin 8.
__________________________________________________________________________________
As part of an ongoing housing delivery programme, Dublin City Council are currently
developing a new apartment scheme across two sites on Cork and Chamber Street in Dublin
8. The sites are located adjacent and opposite to Weaver Park on Cork Street and Chamber
Street respectively, on land formerly occupied by 3no. residential blocks. The proposed
development will provide 55 new apartments, arranged in two blocks, with associated
parking and amenity spaces.
Therefore, in accordance with the standard terms and conditions for the provision of an
electricity supply, the City Council is required to provide a site for a substation free of charge
to the ESB.
It is proposed to dispose of the fee simple in a site at Chamber Street, Dublin 8, as shown
outlined red on map index number SM-2021-0147, to the ESB subject to the following terms
and conditions –
1. The site shall be disposed of to the ESB for the sum of one euro.
2. The disposal shall be subject to all statutory easement rights of the ESB.
3. The ESB shall be granted a wayleave over the area coloured yellow on the attached
map index number SM-2021-0147.
4. The ESB shall be granted a right of way over the area hatched yellow on the
attached map index number SM-2021-0147.
5. The ESB shall pay a contribution of €750 (seven hundred and fifty euros) towards the
City Council’s legal costs incurred in the transaction together with VAT and
reasonable outlay.
The disposal shall be subject to any such covenants and conditions as the Law Agent in her
discretion shall stipulate.

Page 65

No agreement enforceable at law is created or intended to be created until an exchange of
contracts has taken place.

Paul Clegg_____
Executive Manager

27/4/2021______
Date

Page 66

N: 733363.037
124
123
122
1
2
3
4

6
OR

A
2
B
21
1
2
1

MO
ND
ET
RE
ST

Chapel

5

C
1
4

B
3
4

T
EE
TR
RS
E
B
AM
CH

4
4

8
4

9
1
0
2

29

W

7
1-

QU
'S
RS
VE
EA

22

8
1
7
1

E
AR

14

27

23
OS
CA
R

5

25
SQ
UA
RE

26

6

E: 714417.926

Mercy
Family
Centre

OW
BR

N

15

7

1
1
12

14

H
UT
SO
T
E
RE
ST

1
0

30

N: 733219.070

CHAMBER STREET - Lands at
Dublin City Council to ESB Disposal of Fee Simple shown thus (Area 26m²) Dublin City Council Grant of Wayleave to ESB shown thus Dublin City Council Grant of Right of Way to ESB shown thus ESB Ducting shown thus Disposal of Fee Simple

An Roinn Comhshaoil agus Iompair
Comhairle Cathrach
Bhaile Átha Cliath
Dublin City Council

Rannán Suirbhéireachta agus Léarscáilithe
Environment and Transportation Department
Survey and Mapping Division

O.S REF

SCALE

3263-14, -19

1:1000

INDEX No

FILE NO

SURVEYED
PRODUCED BY

DATE
14-04-2021

D.White

DWG
No

REV

F:\SM-2021-0147 - 001 - A.dgn

THIS MAP IS CERTIFIED TO BE COMPUTER GENERATED BY
DUBLIN CITY COUNCIL FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY DIGITAL MAPBASE

INDEX No.

SURVEY, MAPPING AND RELATED RESEARCH APPROVED

Dr JOHN W. FLANAGAN
CEng FIEI FICE

THOMAS CURRAN

CITY ENGINEER
OSi data :

cOrdnance

SM-2021-0147

APPROVED

ACTING MANAGER LAND SURVEYING & MAPPING

Page DUBLIN
67 CITY COUNCIL

Survey Ireland. All rights reserved. Licence Number 2021 /23/CCMA/ Dublin City Council

E: 714605.016

9
12
612

125

